58-24-O

Exhibit B
ZONING ORDINANCE No. 26-99-0)
OF THE CITY OF CELINA, OHLO

An Ordinance to adopt and enact zoning and related provisions, and to repeal Ordinances in conflict therewith,
This Ordinance consolidates all zoning and related provisions for the purpose of regulating , restricfing and limiting in
the interest of the public health, safefy, convenience, comfort, prosperity and general welfare of the City of Celina,
Ohio, the uses and location of buildings and other structures and the uses of premises, and divide the City into districts.

Ihis Ordinance alse provides the method of administration and enforcement, and preseribes the penalties for the
violation of the these provisions,

WHEREAS, the City of Celina desires to update its Zoning Code, and

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission of Celina, Oltio has recommended the following regulations be
adepted at their June 24, 1999 meeting, and

WHEREAS, the City Council of Celina held a public hearving on August 9", 1999 following the required 30 day
notiee; ‘

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CELINA, OHIO:
SECTION ONE
THAT the following is hereby the Zoning Code of the City of Celina nlong with the attached map,

CHAPTER 1141
GENERAL PROVISIONS

H41.01 PURPOSE
IFar the purpose of promoting the public bealth, safety, morals, comfort and general welfare. conserving the
values of property, [acilitating the provision of water, sewerage, schools and other public requirements and
lessening or avoiding congestion on public streets and highways, this Zoning Ordinance is established.

1141.02 TITLE
Chapter 1141 through 1199 and the Zoning District Map which accompanies this ordinance shall together be
known and cited as the Zoning Ordinance.

1141.03 INTERPRETATION ANI) CONFLICT
Inx their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held te be minimum requirements.
Wherever this Ordinance imposes a greater restriction than is imposed or required by ather provisions of law or by
other rules. regulations or ordinances, the provisions of this Ordinance shall govern.

1141.04 COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS
A No building or structure shall be located, erected, constructed, reconsiructed, enlarpged or structurally altered
except in conformity with the area, height and yard regulations of the district in which such building or
structure is Jocaled except as hereinaller provided.
B. No building, structure or ot shall be used for any purpose other than that which is permitted in the district
in which such building, structure or lot is located, except where such usage was in existence and permitted
prior to the passage of current zoning regulations.

& No yard ar other open space existing adjacent to any building or structure shall be reduced in area or
dimension to less than the minimum required by the Zoning Ordinance,

. No lot at the time of the effective dale of the Zoning Ordinance shall be reduced or subdivided in any manner
below the minimum area and yard provision as required by the Zoning Ordinance,

B Uses nof specifically listed or interpreted to be included categorically under the Uses Seelions ol the District

Chapters shall not be permitted except by Amendment to the Ordinance.

1141.05 SEPARABILITY
Should any section or provision of this Ordinance be declared by the courts to be unconstitutional er invalid, such
decision shall notaffect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the parl so declared
to be unconstitutional or invalid.

CHAPTER 1142
DEFINITIONS

1142,01 DEFINITIONS
For the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance certain terms and words are defined as follows. Except where specifically
defined, all words used in the Zoning Ordinance shall carry their cuslomary meanings.
: " Agriculture” means farming, dairying, pasturage, horticulture, viticulture, animal and pouliry husbandry and
limited processing and sale of agricultural products from land under same ownership.



10.
.

20.

21.
22.

23

24,
23

26.
27.

28.

2%

"Alley" means a public or private thoroughfare which affords only a secondary means ol access Lo property
abutting thereon.

"Animal Hospital and Clinic™ means a building used for the medical treatment, housing or boarding of
domestic animals such as dogs, cats, rabbits, and birds by a veterinarian. i

“Assisted Living Facility” means a residential care facility, other than a licensed nursing home, that provides
persenal care for persons with impairments in performance of activities of daily living and has the capacity
ta meet unscheduled needs for assistance, Typical to this facility is that each residence is private oceupancy,
furnished by oceupant, with food service, laundry and gathering arcas shared in the fa ility.

“Automotive Filling Station” means any building or land area used or intended to be used for the retail
dispensing or sales of vehicular fuels; and including as an accessory use the sale and installation ol lubricants,
tires, balteries, and similar accessories.

"Automotive Services" means the repair, rebuilding or reconditioning of motor vehicles or parts thercor,
including collision service, painting and steam cleaning of vehicles and commercial carwashes.
"Autometive Sales” means the display, sale or rental of new or used motar vehicles or trailers in operable
condition where no repair work is done.

"Basement” means a story having part but not more than one-half of its height above grade and used for
storage, garages for use of oceupants of the building, or other active use for the rest of the building,
“Bed and Break[ast Establishment” means any owner occupied dwelling unit that contains no more than four
rooms where lodging, with or without meals, are provided for compensation.

"Board" means the Board of Zoning Appeals of Celina, Ohio.

“Building” means any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls, used or intended to be used
for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or property.

“Building and Related Trades” means a building or premises used for the storage and retail sale of those
materials and services customary to the construction profession of which offices of those prolessionals
associated with the construction profession may be an accessory use.

"Building, Front Line of" means the line of that face of the building nearest the front line ol the lot. This
line does not include uncovered steps or handicapped access ramps:

“Building Lot™ means any platted lot, a legally described parcel of land, or combination ol adjacent platted
lots or other described land that is identified on a deed as being owned by the same owner, and is large
enough for the construction of a residence. 1t may also be any combination of adjacent land deeded
separately but shown on the county’s tax maps as owned by the same owner.

"Building, Height ol" means the vertical distance from the average grade level along the front building tine
to the highest point of the building or structure.

"Building, Principal" means a building in which is conducted the main or principal use of the lot on which
such building is situated. .

“Cemetery” means land used or intended to be used for the burial of the dead and dedicated for such
purposes, including crematories, mausoleums and mortuaries, if operated in connection with, and within the
boundaries of, such cemetery.

“Clinic” means a place used for the care, diagnosis and treatment of sick, ailing, infirm and injured persons
and those who are in neced of medical, dental or surgical attention, but who are nol provided with room or
board nor kept avernight on the premises.

“Club™ means a nonprofit association of persans who are bona fide members paying regular dues, and are
organized for some commaon purpose, but exclding religious places of worship or a group organized solely
or primarily to render a service customarily carried on as a commercial enterprise.

“Commercial School” means a facility, operating for profit, providing a curriculum of continuing academic
wstruction including vocational and technical courses.

"Commission" means the Celina Planning Commission.

"Commercial Entertainment Facilities” means any activity which is generally related to the entertainment field,
such as motion picture theaters, night clubs, and similar entertainment activities and excluding taverns.
"Community Development Project” means any development ofland for industrial, commercial or residential
purposes, or a combination of these uses, provided they are functionally integrated. to attain an improved
characler of development that conforms to the purpose and intent of the Zoning Ordinance.

"Council" means the City Council of Celina, Ohio. .

“Day Care Facility” means a building or structure where daytime care, protection and supervision are
provided on aregular schedule, for a fee, at least twice a week. This definition includes Child Care Facilitics
which address and pertain to the eare of children up to and throughout school ages. Adult Care Facilitics
address and pertain to the care of adults, This definition does not include residential care such as Assisted
Living Facility and Group Home.

“Days" means calendar days unless stated otherwise.

“Pesign Review District™ means a portion of the territory of the City, within which special requirements and
regulations established under the Design Review District provisions ef this Ordinance are applied. Design
Review Districts are established by Council and identified on the Zoning Map.

“Design Review Commission™ means a commission established under the Design Review District provisions
of this Ordinance.

“District” means a portion of the territory of the City, within which certain uniform regulations and
requirements or various combinalions thereof apply under the provisions of this Ordinance.

"Drive-In Commercial Uses" means any retail commetrcial use serving primarily vehicular trade such ¢
drive-in restaurants, drive-in theaters, dtive-in banks and drive thru convenience stores.

2



L

34

35

36.

40.

41;

48,

49,

5

n
o

53.

54,

554

“Dwelling" means any building or portion thereof which is designated for or used Tor residential PUIpoSCs.

‘Dywelling, Efficiency Apartment” means a dwelling unitina multi-family building withou! asepurate distinet
room for sleeping,

"Dwelling, Multi-Family" means a building used or designed as a residence for thres or more familics living
independently of cach other and doing their own cooking therein, including apartment houses, garden
apartments and row houses.

"Dwelling, Permanently Sited Manufactured Home" means a building manulaclured in an off-site Meility
designated for or accupied exclusively by one family that meets all of the following criteria:

a. The structure is affixed to a permanent foundation and is connected lo appropriate utilities:

b, The structure, excluding any addition, has a minimum width of 22 feet, a minimum lengthal 22 fect,
and a minimum {loor area of 900 square feet;

& The structure has a minimum roof pitch of 3:12, conventional residential siding, and a minimam 6
inch eave overhang, including appropriate guttering;

d. The structure was manufactured afler January 1, 1995;

e The structure has a permanent label or tag cerlifying that it was constructed in conlormance with all

applicable federal construction and safety standards.
"Dwelling, Single-Family” meansa building designated for or occupicd exclusively hy one family, including
Permanently Sited Manufactured Homes as defined herein,
"Dwelling, Three Family” means a building designated for or occupied exclusively by three families.
“Dwelling, Two-Family" means a building designated for or occupied exclusively by two families,
“Educational Institution™ means a [acility that provides a curriculum of elementary or sccondary acadenic
instruction, including kindergarten, clementary schools, junior high schools, high schools and technical and
collegiate level courses.
“Essential Services” means the erection, consfruction, alteration or maintenance, by public utilities or
municipal or other governmental agencies, of facilities which are necessary for furishing adequalte service
by such public utilities or municipal or other governmental agencies or for the public health-or safety or
generaf welfare, but not including buildings.
“Family" means one ormore persons occupying a dwelling and living as asingle housekeeping unit and doing
their own cooking on the premises as distinguished from a group oceupying a hotel, as herein defined.
“Financial Institution™ means any building, property or activity of which the principal use or purpose is the
provision of financial services including but not limited to banks, facilities for awtomated teller machines
(ATMSs), credit unions, savings and loan institutions and mortgage companies.
"Food Processing” means the preparation or processing of food products excluding restaurants, for wholesale
distribution.
ontage" means all of the property between a street and the front building line. The front boundary line
of a lot is the line that abuts on a street, and includes its length.
“Funeral Home” means any dwelling or other structure used and occupied by a professional licensed
mortician for burial preparation and funeral services.
“Girain Elevators and Feed Mill” means a building, structure or premiscs used for the storage and retail sales
of grain and other related agricultural supplies and products.
“Group Home" means any licensed residential facility designed to allow not more than eight (8) persons,
needing specialized care, counseling, on-going medical treatinent or supervision o live in the same building
or complex of huildings and engage in some congregate activily in a non-institutional environment.
“Home Queupation™ mesns any oceupation, profession, activity or use which is accessory to the principal use
of the premises and is conducted by a resident occupant which does not alter the interior of the propeity or
atfect the residential character of the neighborhood.
“Hospital” means an institution providing health services primarily for human in-patient medical or surgical
care for the sick or injured and including related facilitics such as laboratories, oul-patient departments,
training facilities, central services facilities, and staff offices that are an integral part of the [acilities.
"Hotcl/Motel™ means a building in which lodging or boarding and lodging are provided and ofTered (o the
public for compensation and possibly providing as an accessory use additional facilities such as restaurants.
meeting rooms and recreational facilities.
"[nstitution” means buildings or land occupied by a nonprofit corporation or a nonprafit establishment for
public use.
“Interior Lot Line" means any lot line shown by plat or deed of separately described parcels of tand making
up a building lot and located within its boundaries.
“Junk Storage and/or Sales; Salvage Operation" means any lot, land or structure or part thereol used
primarily for the collection, storage and sale of waste paper, rags, scrap metal or discarded material. or for
the collecting, dismantling, storage and salvaging of machinery or vehicles not in operaling condition, or for
the sale of parts thercof
“Land Use Tlan" means the long-range plan for the desirable use of land as adopted by the Planning
Commission; the purpose of such plan being to serve as a guide in future development and zoning of the
community.
“"Loading Space" means a space within the main building or on the same lot therewith providing for the
loading or unloading of trucks.
“Lock and Store (or Store and Lock) Warehousing” means a building or group of buildings in a controlled
access compound that contains equal or varying sizes of compartmentalized and controlled access stalls or
lockers for the storage of customer goods or wares.

3



58.

39,

60,

61,

02,

63.

64,

65.

GG,

67.

68.

69,

70.

7.

12

13.
74.

79.

0.

“Lot" meansa parcel of land occupied or intended for accupancy by a use permittedin the Zoning Ordinance,
including one principal building together with accessory buildings, the open spaces and parking spaces
required by the Zoning Ordinance, and having its principal frontage upon a street,

“Lot Coverage" means the ratio of enclosed ground floor area of all buildings to (he horizontally projected
area of the lot, expressed as a percentage. ‘

"Lot of Record" means any lot which, individually or as a part of a subdivision, has been recorded in the
office of the County Recorder,

"Lot, Minimum Area OP* means the area of a lot computed exclusive ol any portion of the right of way of
any public thoroughfare,

"Lot Width" means the width of a ot at the building setback line measured at right angles to its depth. The
lot widh of lats on curved streets shull be the chord distance between points of interseetion of the side lol
lines with the curve deseribing the required depth of front yard,

“Leot - Outlot™ means a lot associated with larger development plan where the primary parcel defines the
development. The develapment on outlots must conform, in use type, to the primary site development.
Qutlots may be deeded separately [rom the primary parcel, but can be considered part of the overall
development. Insite plan reviews, these lots shall be considered as part of the overall site development. In
ashopping center, or ina B-3 zone, it is a lot that is owned and/or developed separately from the shopping
center and has its own access drives, parking, and signage.

"Manulacturing” means the mechanical, chemical, or biological transformation ar assembly of materials,
substances, or compenent parts into new products or components, usually for distribution to wholesale
markets, or for interplant transfer to industrial users,

"Mineral Extraction, Storage and Processing” means any mining, quarrying or processing of limestone, shale,
clay, coal or other minerals.

cd Use™ means a combination of two or more principally permitted or conditionally permitted uses
within a district, as approved by the Planning Commission, in the same building or en the same premises.
"Mobile Homes or Trailers" means any vehicle or similar portable structure so designed or constructed as
to permit occupancy for dwelling or sleeping purposes. ;

"Mobile Home Parks" means an arca manifestly designed for rent or lease of mobile home lots in a safe,
sanitary and desirable manner as described in Chapter 1180.

“Nursing Home™ means a building, group of buildings or licensed facility, public or private, which provides
full-time personal care ar nursing (o the ill, physicatly inform or aged persons whe are not related by hload
or matriage to the operator.

"Office™ means a building or portion ola building wherein services are performed involving predominately
administrative, professional or clerical operations.

"Olf-Street Parking Space" means any parking space located wholly off any street, alley or sidewalk either
inan enclosed building or on an open lot.

“Overlay District” means the portion of the territory of the City, within which special requirements and
regulations established under the Overlay Distriet provisions of this Ordinance are applied. Overlay Districts
are established by Council and identified on the Zoning Map.

"Personal Services" means any enterprise conducted for gain which serves primarily personal needs of the
general public such as shoe repair, watch repairing, barber shop, beauty parlors, and similar activities,
“Petroleum Refining and Storage” means a facility designed to separate and remove impurities from oil or
pas and store such fuels for distribution.

“Planning Commission" means the Celina Planning Commission.

"Puhlic Service Facility" means the erection, construction, alteration, operation or maintenance ol huildings
and other similar public sérvice structures by a public utility, by a railroad, whether publicly or privately
owned, or by a municipal or other governmental agency, including the furnishing of electiical. gas. rail
transport, communicalion, public water and sewage disposal services.

"Public uses” means public parks, schools and administrative, cultural and service buildings, not including
public land or buildings devoted solely to the storage and maintenance of equipment and material.
“Public Recreation” means recreational facilities developed, used and/or maintained by public agencies for
use by the public.

"Recreational facilities, commercial " means recreational Facililies open to the public, established and operated
for a profit, such as commercial golf courses, golf driving ranges, swimming pools, ice skaling rinks. riding
stables, boat docks, fishing piers, boat launching, race tracks, amusement parks, carnivals, food concessions
as an accessory use, and similar commercial enterprises.

"Recreational facilities, noncommercial means private and semipublic recreational [acilities which are not
operated for commercial gain, including private country clubs, riding clubs, golf courses, and other private
noncommercial recreation areas and fcilities or recreation centers, including private community swinming
pools, boat docks, fishing piers, boat launching, and food concessions 15 an accessory use.

“Religious places of worship” means an institution that a congregation of people regularly attend 1w
participate in or hold religious services, meetings and other activities, including buildings in which the
religious services of any denominations arc held.

“Restauranl” means an establishment with table services whose principal business is the sclling of
unpackaged food and beverages to the customer in aready to consume state, in individual servings, orinnon-
disposable containers.




81

82,

£3.

84,

86,

87

8.
89,
90.

9]

92.

96.

97.

98.

99.
100.

101.

102

103.

104,

“Restaurant, fast food” means an establishment whose principal business is the sale of prepared or rapidly
prepared food, in disposable containers and withou table service, directly to the customer in a ready-lo-
consime state,

“Retail Business™ means any business selling geods, warcs, or merchandise directly to the ultimate consumer
for direct consumption and not for resale.

“Retail ncighborhood business” means small retail commercial establishments catering primarily to nearby
residential areas providing convenicnce goods and services, including but not limited to, small grocery stores,
pharmacies, barber shops, beauty salons and coin-op Laundromats.

“Seientific research facility” means a building or buildingsin which scienlific research, investigation, esting
or experimentation is conducled, but not including the manufacturing or sales of products, except as
incidental to the main purpose of the laboratory.

“Semi-public buildings” means churches, Sunday schools, private and parochial schools. hospitals and other
institutions of a charitable, educational or religious nature.

"Shopping center” means a grouping of retail and service uses on a single site that is developed, owned and
managed as a unit with off-street parking and loading as an integral part of that unil.

"Story" means that portion ol'a building other than a basement included between the surface ol any Hoorand
the surface of the floor next abave it, or il there is no floor above it, then the space between the flaor and the
ceiling nextabove it. A basemenl shall be counted as astory if it is used for living quarters, or if one-hall of
its volume is above the average level of the adjacent ground.

"Street Line, Right-of-Way Line" means a dividing line between a lot, tract or parcel of land and contiguous
street

"Structure” means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires permanent location on the
ground, or attached to something having a permanent location on the ground.

"Structural Alterations” means any change which would tend to prolong the life of a supporting member of
a structure such as hearing walls, columns, beams or girders.

"Tavern" means an establishment serving alcoholic beverages in which the principal business is the sale of’
such beverages al retail for consumption on the premises and where food may be available for consumption
on the premises,

"Transport Trucking Terminal" means any business, structures or premises which primarily receives or
distributes goods by tractor trailer or other similar vehicle.

"Use™" means the purpose for which land, a building or structure is arranged, designed, or intended, or for
which either land, a building or structure is, or may be, occupied or maintained.

"Use, Accessory" means a use, building or structure subordinale to the principal use of a building or to the
principal use of land, which is located on the same lot as the principal use, and which is serving a purpose
customarily incidental lo the use of the principal building or land use.

"Use, conditional” means a use which is permitted in a district only if a zoning certificate therefore is
expressly authorized by the Planning Commission.

“Use, Non-Conforming" means any building, structure, or premises legally existing or used at the time of
adeption of this Ordinance, or any amendment thereto, and which does not conform with the use regulations
of the district in which located. Any such building, structure, or premises conforming in respect to use but
not in respeet to height, area, yards, or distance requirements from more restricted districts or uses. shall not
be considered a non-conforming use.

“Use, Principally Permilted" means a use which is permitted outright in a district for which a zoning
certificate sholl be issued by the Zoning Inspectar provided that the applicant meets the applicable
requirements of the Ordinance.

"Variance" ineans a relaxalion of requirements where such variation will not be contrary to the public interest
and where, owing to conditions peculiar to the property and not the result of actions of the applicant, a literal
enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance would prohibil the reasonable use of the land.

"Warchousing"” means a building or facility that stores commadities in large quantitics for distribution 1o
relail, wholesale or manufacturing businesses.

“Wholesale Business” means an establishment that is engaged in the selling of merchandise to retail
establishments rather than to consumers.

"Yard" means an open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot lines unoccupied and
unobstrucled by any portion of a structure from the ground upward, except as otherwise provided herein.
In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the width of a side yard, the depth ofa front yard or the
depth ofarear yard, the minimum horizontal distance between the lot line and the main building shall he used.
“Yard, Front" means a yard between the front building line and the right-of-way line of the fronfing street.
In case of a lot thal fronts more than one street, the yard abutting the street named in the property address
shall be considered the front yard.

“Yard, Rear” means a yard extending across the full width of'a lotand being (he minimum horizontal distance
between the rear ot line and the rear of the main building or any projection thereof, other than the projections
of uncovered steps or unenclosed porches. I the case of a lot that fronts more than one street, the yard
opposile the front yard shall be considered the rear yard.

"Yard, Side" means a yard between the main building and the side line of the lot and extending from the
required front yard to the required rear yard and being the minimum horizontal distance belween the side lot
and the side of the main building or any projections thereto.



1143.0

1143.0

1

2

1143.03

17143.04

1143.0

o

105, "Zonimg Certificate” means the document issued by the Zoning Inspector authorizing the use of the fond or
building consistent with the terms of this Ordinance and for the purpose of carrying out and enforcing its
provisions,

106. "Zoning Map" means the Zoning District Map or Maps of the City, together with all amendments
subsequently adopled,

107, "Zoning Inspector” means the Safety Service Director of the City or his designee.

108, "Zoning Permit” shall be synonymous with Zoning Certificate, and these twuo terms shall be considercd one
and the same where listed within this Ordinance.

CHAPTER 1143
ADMINISTRATION

PURPOSE
‘This Ordinance sets both the powers and duties of the Zoning Inspector. the Planning Commission. the Board of
Zoning Appeals, and The Design Review Commission with respect to the administration ol the provisions of this
Ordinance.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ZONING INSPECTOR
The Zoning Inspeetor shall have the following responsibilities and powers;
Enforce the provisions of this Ordinance and interpret the meaning and application of its provisions.

;

13 Receive, review and make determinations on applications for zoning permits,

Lt Issue zoning certificates and other certificates and permits as provided by this Ordinance, and keep a record
of same with notations of special conditions involved,

D, Review and process plans pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance.

1% Make determinations as to whether violations of this Ordinance exist, determine the nature and extent

thereaf, and notify the owner in writing, specifying the exact nature of the violation and the manner in which
it shall be corrected by the owner, pursuant to the procedures in this Ordinance.

B Conduct inspections of buildings and uses of land to determine compliance or non-compliance with this
Ordinance.
G. Mainiainp and records required by this Ordinance, including, but not limited to. the Official

Zoning Map. Zoning Cerlificates, inspection documents and records of all variances. amendments and
conditional uses. These records shall be made available for use of the City Council. Planning Commission,
the Board of Zoning Appeals and to the public.

H.  Revoke a certificate or approval issucd contrary to this Ordinance or based on a [alse statement or
misrepresentation in the application,
L. The Zoning Inspector shall be responsible for the collection and deposit of all fees for credit to the General

Revenue Fund of the City.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION
The Planning Comimission shall have the following responsibilities and powers as they relate to this Ordinance:

A. Initiate by recommendation to City Council, Official Zoning Map changes, or changes in the text of the
Ordinance where such changes will promote the best interest of the public in general,

B. Review all proposed amendments to the text of this Ordinance and the Official Zoning Map and make
recommendations to the City Council. -

G Review all conditional uses as identified in the respective zoning districts aceording to provistong and criteria

stated in this Ordinance.
L. Carry ona continuous review of the elfectiveness and appropriateness of this Ordinance and recommend such
changes or amendments as it feels would be appropriate.

E Review and act on site plans pursuant to the provisions and criteria stated in this Ordinance.
E. Review and act upon requests for substitution or enlargement of nonconforming uses as set forth in Chapter
1150.

The Planning Commission shall also have the responsibilities as set forth in Chapter 145 of the Codified Ordinances
of the City.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
‘The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following responsibilities and duties:

A. Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, requirement, decision.
interpretation or determination made by the Zoning Inspector.
B. Authorize such variances [rom the terms of this Ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest.

where, owing la the special conditions, a literal enforcement of this Ordinance will prohibit reasonable use
of the property and so that the spirit of this Ordinance shall be observed and substantial justice done.
Proceclures for variances shall conform to Section 1153.04, Variances,
[ Hear and rule on appeals taken on the basis of a decision rendered by the Planning Commission or Design
Review Commission,
‘The Board of Zoning Appeals may call on the several city departments for assistance in the performance ofits dutics,
and it shall be the duty of such departments to render such assistance to the Board of Zaning Appeals as may
reasonably be required.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION )
The Design Review Commission shall have the following responsibilities and dutics.



1144.01

1144.02

1144.03

1144,04

Ao Review and approve, or deny, all applications for Certificales of Design Approval. All applications are 1o
be acled upon by the Commission within the time period established in 1148.04 of this Ordinance.
B. Work to inerease the public awarcness of the significance of the Districl.

C. Encourage property owners within the District o initiate changes, which will enhance the significance of the
Distriet.

1. Receive, send, and nccount for any funds, which it may legally reccive from any source, for the purpose of
carrying out the provisions of this Ordinance.

E. Contract, as needed and as allowed by funding availability, technical experts to (ulfill the provisions of this
Ordinance.

F. Keep minutes and records of all meetings and proceedings, including records of voling, attendance.
resolutions, findings, determinations, and decisions, withall pertinent material being a matter of public record.

£ Perform any other functions necessary to carry out the duties required by this Ordinance, or by turther

resolution of Council,

CHAPTER 1144
ENFORCEMENT

ZONING INSPECTOR

It shall be the duty of the Zoning Inspector to administer and enforce the Zoning Ordinance. 1t shall also
be the duty of all officials and emplayees of the Municipality to assist the Zoning Inspector by reporting to him new
construction, reconstruction or land uses or apparent violations.

Appeals from the decision of the Zoning Inspector may be made to the Board of Zaning Appeals, as provided
in Section 1153,

ZONING CERTIFICATES

The following shall relate to Zoning Certificates:

A. It shall be unlawful for an owner to use or to initiate construction or permit the use ol any strucluse, building
or land, or part thereof, hercafler created, erected, changed, converted or enlarged, wholly or partly, until
a Zoning Certificate has been issued by the Zoning Inspector. It shall be the duty of the Zoning Inspector
to issuc a certificate, provided he is satisfied that the structure, building or premises and the proposed use
thereof conlorm to all the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. No permit lor excavation, construction
or reconstruction shall be issued by the Zoning Inspector unless the plans, specifications and the intended use
conform to the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance. All Zoning Certificates shall expire one year afier their
issuance unless construction has reached filty percent (50%) of completion.

B. Upon written request from the owuer, or tenant, the Zoning Inspector shall issue a Zoning Certificate for any

building or premises existing at the time of enactment of the Zoning Ordinance certifying, after inspection,

the extent and kind of use made of the building or premises and whether such use conforms to the provisions

of the Zoning Ordinance. No charge shall be made for issuing a Zoning Cerlificale in accordance with this

subsection,

The Zoning Inspector must refer to the requirements of O.R.C. Section 5511.01 before any zoning action

isapproved neara proposed new state highway or a state highway for which changes are proposed. Any land

within 300 feet of such highway, or within 500 feet of any proposed state highway intersection wark, is

affected. Motice is to be sent to the Director of the Ohio Department ol Transportation,

g

CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH CERTIFICATES ARE REQUIRED

A Zoning Certificale shall be required for any of the following, except as hercin provided:

Al Construction, or structural alteration increasing the square footage of any building, including accessory
buildings,

Change in use of an existing building or accessory building to a use of a dillerent classi fication.
Occupancy and use of vacant land.

Change in the use of land to a use of a different classification.

Any change in the use of a nonconforming use.

A Zoning Certificate may be required for all lawful nonconforming uses of land or buildings created by
adoption of the Zoning Ordinance or any amendments thereto. 5

MRCO®

APPLICATION AND ISSUANCE OF ZONING CERTIFICATES

The following shall apply to the issuance of Zoning Certificates:

A A complete written application shall be made for a Zoning Certificate for the construction of a new building
or the alteration of an existing building. Such Certificate shall be issued within ten (10) business days after
awritten request for the same has been made to the Zoning Inspector or his agent, provided the construction
or alteration is in conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.

B. Written application for a Zoning Certificale for the use of vacant land, or for a change in the use of Tand or
of a huilding, or for a change in a nonconforming use, as herein provided, shall be made to the Zoning
Inspector. If the proposed use is in conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, the certificate
shall be issued within ten business days afler the application for same has been made.

¢ Every application for a Zoning Certilicate shall be accompanied by a plot plan , and such other plons as may

be necessary to show the loeation and type of buildings to be erected or alterations to be made. Where
construction or physical improvement of the land is involved, the lot and location of the buildings to he



1144.05

1145.01

1145.02

crected thereon shall be staked out on the ground before construction is started, and all dimensions shown
on filed plans shall be based on an actual survey.

l. Each plan shall show:
a. The street providing, aceess to the lot and the exact location of the Jot in relation to the
nearesl cross streel.
b. The name of the subdivision, ilany, and the lot numbers of the subject property and abutting,
properties.
& The actual dimensions of the lol, the yard and other open space dimensions thereof, and the
location and size of any existing structure thereon.
d. The location and size of the proposed structures, and/or the propesed enlargement of the
existing structure.
& Any other information which, in the judgment of the Zoning Inspector, may be necessary (o
provide for the enforcement of the Zoning Ordinance,
Z The plan shall include statements declaring that no part of the land involved in the application has
been previously used to provide required yard space or lot arca for another structure.
2 Wiere complete and accurale information is not readily available from existing records, the Zoning
Inspector may require the applicant to furnish a survey of the lot by a registered surveyor.
4, ach application shal] bear a statement acknowledging that all construction will be done in
compliance with the Construction Standards of the City of Celina and any applicable building codes.
B Each property owner, or authorized agent, shall be required to attest 1o the correciness of the
statements and data furnished with the application.
6. A file of such applications and plans shall be kept in the office of the Zoning Inspector.
D, The Zoning Inspector shall not issue a Zoning Certificate for any application requiring any of the following:

1 A Conditional Use Approval as established in Chapter 1145;
2 Site plan review as required in Chapter 1146;
3 An Overlay District Site Development Plan as required under Chapter 147,
4 A Certificate of Approval as required under Chapter [ 148, Design Review District.
B A permil for the enlargement or substitution of a nonconforming use, as required in Chapter 1150.
Unless the application has been returned to the Zoning Inspector from the primary review bodies with
instructions to issue.
In cases where more than one of the additional approvals listed above are required for a projeet, the order
of submissions shall be:

a) Design Review District Certificate of approval

b) All Planning Commission action (Conditional Uses, Overlay District

Site Development Plan Revicw, Site Plan Review and Nonconforming Uses)
c) Board of Zoning Appeals (Variances and Appeals).
E. Fees: The City Council shall by Ordinance, establish a schedule of fees for zoning

permits, amendments, appeals, variances, conditional use approvals, plan approvals, and other procedures
and services pertaining to the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance, afler considering the
recommendations of the Zoning Inspector withrespect to actual administrative costs, both direct and indirect.
The schedule of fees shall be posted in the office of the Zoning Inspector, and may be altered or amended
only by the City Council. Until all such appropriate [ees, charges, and expenses have been paid in full, no
action shall be taken on any application, appeal, or administrative procedure.

NONCOMPLIANCE
Situations of noncompliance with the provisions of this Ordinance shall be remedied as outlined in Chapler 1199,
"Violations, Remedies and Fees".

CHAPTER 1145
CONDITIONAL USES

CONDITIONAL USES ) )
‘The Planning Commission may authorize, upon application, conditional uses as delineated in this Chapter. Such
conditional use requests shall conform to the procedures and requirements of this Chapter.

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL

An Application for Conditional Use Approvalshall be filed with the Zoning Inspector by at least anc owner, owner's
agent or lessee of properties for which such conditional use is proposed. The application shall be signed by the owner
or applicant attesting to the accuracy of all information supplied in the application. Ata minimum, the application
shall contain the following information:

A, Name, address and telephone number of the owner of record and applicant;

B. A boundary survey ol the said property;

C. Description of existing use;

D. Present zoning district;

I Description of proposed conditional use; ) ’ )
k. A plan of the proposed sile for the conditional use showing the location ofall buildings, parking and loading

areas, traffic access and traffic circulation, open spaces, landscaping, refuse and service areas, utilitics, signs,
yards and other such information as the Zoning Inspector may require to determine if the proposcd
conditional use meets the intent and requirements of this Ordinance;



1145.03

1145.04

1145.05

1145.06

1145.07

1145.08

1146.01

G Astaiement and supporting documentation describing how the applicant belicves the request conforms 1o
the standards for conditional uses listed in Section 1145.03; and

1. Anapplication filing fee as established by Council;

L 'l‘hc| Zulnling Inspector may waive certain submission requirements where il is delermined that it is not
applicable.

GENERAL STANDARDS FOR CONDITIONAL USES

In addition to specific requirements for conditionally permitted uses that may be specified in the district use
regulations, the Planning Commission shall review the particular facts and circumstances of each proposed use in
2rms of the following standards and shall find acdequate evidence showing that such use at the proposed location:

Al Shall be in accordance with the general objectives of this Ordinance;

B. Shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be hanmonious and appropriate in
appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity:

&, Shall not be hazardous or disturbing to neighboring uses;

n. Shall be served adequately by essential public facilitics and scrvices;

E. Shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the communily;

F. Shall not invalve uses, aclivities, processes, material, equipment and/or conditions of operation thal will

be detrimental to any persons, praperty or the general welfare by reasan of excessive production of
traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

(. When reviewing public service facilities, the adequacy and availability of existing services shall be
considered,

The Planning Commission shall have the authority to medify the requirements of a conditional use,

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS

In granting any conditional use, the Planning Commission may prescribe appropriate conditions and safeguards in
conformity with this Ordinance. Violations of such conditions and safeguards when made a part of the terms under
which the conditional use is granted shall be deemed a violation of this Ordinance.

NOTICE TO PARTIES OF INTEREST

Written natice shall he mailed by the Planning Commission by first class mail at least seven days before
the date of the hearing to the members of Planning Commission and all property owners within 150 feet
in any direction of the property upon which an application for a conditional use approval has been filed.
The notice shall contain the location of the property, nature of the proposcd conditional use, and the time
and place of the meeting. The failure to mail or deliver nofification as provided in this paragraph shall
not invalidate any action of the Planning Commission.

ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Within thirty (30) days after their original consideration of a conditional use application, the Planning
Commission shall cither approve, approve with supplementary conditions as specified in Section 114504,
or disapprove the application as presented, If the application is approved or approved with
supplementary conditions, the Planning Commission shall direct the Zoning Inspector to issue a zoning
permit listing the specific conditions specificd by the Planning Commission for approval.

APTEALS
Appeals from (he Planning Commission for conditional uses shall be made to the Board of Zoning Appeals pursuant
to Section 1153,

EXPIRATION OF CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL

A conditional use approval shall be deemed to authorize only one particular conditional use and such approval shall
automatically expire if, forany reason, the conditional use has ceased by discuntinuance or abandonment fora period
of more that one year.

CHAPTER 1146
SITE PLAN GUIDELINES STANDARDS

APPLICABILITY
In arder to administer the provisions of this Zoning Ordinance and to evaluale site plans in the interest of the
public health, safety and general welfare, this Chapter shall apply to new property development and any
colleetive substantial expansion of existing structures, except for individual single family dwellings and two
family dwellings (duplexes) and parking lots of five (5) spaces or smaller. Substantial expansion of existing
structures shall be defined based on the criteria established below:

|| When Existing Structure is.... _l_.v\ Substantial Expansion is.... n




1146.02

1146.03

1146.04

- 1,000 Sq. FL. 50% or Greater
1.001 - 10,000 Sq. F1. 40% or Greater
10,001 - 25,000 Sq. Ft. 30% or Grealer
25,001 - 50,000 Sq. Ft. 20% or Greater
30,001 Sq. 1. and larger 10% or Greater

Furthermore, no building shall be erected or structurally altered on any ot or parcel in cases where a site plan review
is required, except in accordance with the regulations of this section and an approved site plan. No Zoning
Certificate shall be issued prior to the approval of a site plan,

CONTENTS OF SITL PLAN

Belore a permit is issued for construction, one copy of the site plan at a scale no smaller than | inch to 100 feet shall
be filed with the Zoning Inspector setting forth, identifying and locating the following:

A The total area in the development.

B. The existing zoning of the subject property and all adjacent properties.

{2 All public and private right-of-way and casement lines located on or adjacent to the property.
. Existing topography with a maximum of five (5) foot contour intervals,

E. The proposed [inished grade of the development shown by contours not larger than one (1) fool.
[%

The locations of all existing and proposed buildings in the described parcels, the uses to be contained therein
and the total number of buildings including dimensions, heights, gross floor area and number of storics.
G. Location and dimension of all curb cuts, driving lanes, off-streel parking and loading areas including the

number of spaces, angles of stalls, grades, surfacing materials, drainage plans, an illumination of facilitics.
H. All sidewalks and other open areas,

L Location of all walls, fences, and buffer yards.

) Location, size, height, colors, typeset, materials, lighting, and orientation of all signs.

K. Laocation of all existing streets, highways and alleys.

L. All existing and proposed water and sanitary sewer lines indicaling pipe sizes, types and grades.

M, The schedule of phasing of the project.
Such other information as required by the Planning Commission to determine the conformarce with this Ordinance

SITE PLAN REVIEW GUIDELINES
The following principles shall guide the exercise of site planning review by the Planning Commission:

Al The natural topographic and landscape features of the site shall be  incorporated into the plan and the
development.

B. Buildings and open spaces shall be in praportion and in scale with existing structures and spaces in the area
within three hundred (300) feet of the development site.

€ A site that has an appearance of being congested, over built or cluttered can evolve into a blighting influence

and therefore such shall not be congested, over built or cluttered,

D Open spaces shall be linked together.

B Natural separation shall be preserved or crealed on the site by careful planning of the streets and clustering
of buildings using natural features and open spaces for separation. Existing vegetation removal shall he kept
to a minimu. ’

b Screening of intensive uses shall be provided by utilizing landscaping, fences or walls lo enclose internal
areas.

G. Buildings shall be sited in an orderty, non-random fashion. Lung, unbroken building facades shall be avoided.
H. Short loop streets, cul-de-sacs and residential strects shall be used for access Lo low density residential land
uses in order to provide a saler living environment and a stronger sease of neighborhood identity..

L Pedestrian circulation in nonresidential areas shall be arranged so that ofT-street parking arcas are located

within a convenient watking distance of the use being served. Handicapped parking shail be located as near
as possible to the entrance of the structure. Pedestrian and vehicular circulation shall he separated as much
as possible through crosswalks designated by pavement markings, signage, or grade separation.

1 Path and sidewalk strect crossings shall be located where there is a good sight distance along the road,
preferably away from sharp bends or sudden changes in grade.
K. Parking lols and parages shall be located in such a way as to provide safe, convenient ingress and cpress.

Whenever possible there shall be a sharing of curb cuts by more than one facility. Parking areas shall be
screened and landscaped and traffic islands shall be provided to protect circulating vehicles and to break up
the monotony of continuously paved arcas.

L Drive through establishments, such as restaurants and banks, shall be located to allow enough automobile
waiting space for peak hour operation without interference with other parking lot cireulations, or overflow
onto streets.

ACTION BY PLANNING COMMISSION FOR SITE PLAN REVIEW
Upon submission of the complete application for site plan review o the Zoning Inspector. the application shall be
transmitted to the Planning Commission for review pursuani to Seetion 1146.03, "Site Plan Review Giuidelines™.

. Notice ol all public meetings shall be given as required by State law, and the Planning Commission may hold a public

hearing on any site plan review application.

The Planning Commission shall act upon ail site plans within thirty-five (35) days after the receipt of the complete
application from the Zoning Inspector. The Planning Commission may approve. disapprove or approve with
maodifications the site plan as submitted. Within the said thirty-five (35) day period, a majarity of the members of

10



1146.05

1147.01

1147.02

1147.03

1147.04

the Planning Commission present at a meeting therenlmay vole to extend the review period up ta an additional sixty
(160) days.

APPEALS
Appeals of determinations by the Planning Commission regarding site plans shall be made to the Board of Zaning
Appeals.

CHAPTER 1147
OVERLAY DISTRICTS

PURPOSE

An Overlay District is intended to pwwde for and promote orderly growth in certain areas in the City designaled as
having distinctive, seenie, or unique characleristics and importance, Within these Districts, localized actions are
implemented for the protection, preservation and enhancement of these unique and natural assets (o the community.

APPLICABILITY

A An Overlay Distriet is established by City Council, superimposed in specific areas over fhe existing Zoning,
Map, where:
1. Zoning districts indicate incompatibility of use; and

2 Any plans adapted by the City for that area are furthered by the use of this type of district.
Inestablishing these Districts, Council shall outline the various ways in which the general regulations of this
Ordinanee are to be supplemented and/or modified within the described district.

B. All regulations in the Code for the underlying district shall apply unti! a site development plan is approved.
G Upon approval of a site development plan. development and use of the property shall be in accordance with
the plan,

PERMITTED BUILDINGS, USES AND OTHER REGULATIONS

A Principally Permitted Buildings and Uses
“Those buildings and uses principally permitted in the underlying district shall be permittedd in accordance with
all applicable regulations of that underlying district, and subject to the additional specific restrictions on
development and use the Overlay District imposes.

B. Accessory Buildings and Uses
Accessory buildings and uses shall be permitted ifapproved by the Planning Commission as being eonsistent
with the purposes and provisions of this Chapter.

C. Access Management
As parcels within the Overlay Districts are purchased, consolidated and redeveloped, access management
must be implemented to control the number of curb cuts to improve vehicular and pedestrian circulation and

safety,

L. All new nowresidential development within an Overlay District shall require o Traffic Impact Study
to determine any thoroughfare improvements which may be required from the impact of the new
development,

2: ‘Where deemed necessary by the City Engineering I')cp(\ﬂzncn( from the review of the Traffic fmpact
Study, a frantage road may be required for certain developments/redevelopments.

3, When twa or more parcels are developed or redeveloped under the same owner or as part of the snme

development, all curb cuts shall be consolidated inlo one ingress/egress as indicated on the site plan
and as approved by the City Engineering Department.
D. Building and Use Requirements
The main and accessory buildings shall meet the regulations of any districtin which such buildings noruses
would be permitted. 1fthe mainand accessory buildings are not permitted in the underlying district, they shall
conform to the regulations ot the nearest district to the site within which they are allowed. Additionally they
shall meet the following:
1. All the requirements established by the Planning Commission and Council pursuant to the purposes
and provisions of this Chapter;
2. The conditions and demands of any adopted plan affecling the district; and
L The details of the site development plan.
E Landscaping and Streetscaping
Plans shall include landscaping and bulfering as part of the plan review process.

STANDARDS FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL

A. The use of property in the Qverlay District, in accordance with a site plan (pursuant to the requirements of
Chapter 1146 of this Ordinance), shall be permitted only if the proposed site development plan. by its nature.
or by reason of the controls imposed by the Planning Commission and Council:

Is not an adverse influence on any abutting or surrounding properties;

J.

Z Pravides for an orderly transition and promotes compatibility between districts;

& Is in Tull compliance with the purposes afl this Zoning Ordinance and this Chapter:

4 Furthers and conforms to the goals of the Celina Land Use Plan as adopted by the City; and

3 15 designed to maximize the public interest and private benelit in a balanced manner.

1t is the responsibility of the developer to demonstrate compliance with each of the above stated standards.

11



114705

B.

The following factors or characteristics, along witl ather requirements imposed by the Planning Commission
for such use, consistent with the provisions of this Chapter shall be considered in assessing a proposed site
development plan:

. Permitted types of use(s);
2 Intensity of use in terms of:
a Density, floor area or impervious surface ratio (1.8.R.);
b. Traffic impacts; or
ci Other environmental impacts such as noise, light, pollution, elc.;
3, Functional and acsthetic compatibility with existing or proposed development;
a. Landscaping and buffering of the site; and
b. Compliance with the develop goals of an adopted plan for the City or that area of the
City.

To secure the application of all relevant standards to the development of the Overlay District, the Planuing
Commission shall recommend:

1. Front, side and rear yard requirements, density requitements, heightand bulk of building requirements
and intensity of use;

2 The use of materials or designs in the erection of structures which shall minimize the adverse impact
of the uses proposed by the development plan on neighboring propertics;

% Permits or variances for docks, business signs, outdoor storage, parking spaces, loading docks and
driveways;

4. The sereening or setting aside arcas of fand to serve as a buffer of the proposed use in the Overlay
District from adjacent properties by walls, fences, landscaping or open spaces: and

B Such additional conditions and Timitations on use, building dimensions, open spaces and the like as

may be deemed necessary to carry oul the intent of this Chapler and this Zoning Ordinance.
All the powers exercised pursuant to 1147.01 through [147.05 shall serve the objectives (o creale orderly
transitions between districts, to minimize adverse impacts ol one district upon the other, and to promote the
development of property in the Overlay District.

SUBMISSION AND REVIEW OF SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS

Al

m

G.

Site Development Plans Required

Site Development Plans shall be required for all new development within the Overlay Districts and for
substantial redevelopment where 35% or more of the site is altcred or reconstructed.

Site Development Plan Review Fees

Fees and deposits shall be paid according to the provisions of Chapter 1199, Violations, Remecdics, and Fees.
The appropriate deposit shall be made at the time of submission of plans.

Submission of Site Development Plans

Site plans shall be submitted to the Planning Commission by the applicant at least two (2) weeks prior Lo its
meeling. Plans incomplete or filed late may not be accepted for review by the Commission al ils meeting
Site Development Plan Reviews

Upon receipt of the development plans, copies shall be distributed to the following for their review: (he
Zoning Inspector, the Law Director, the Engincering Department, and any planner or consultant the
Commission feels is necessary [or technical input,

The respective individuals or agents should report back to the Commission with their notations and
recommendations within the two (2) weceks. The Planning Commission may hold the plan for thirty (30) days
after receipt of the plan, to receive any of the above reports. This period may be extended by written notice
to the applicant by the Commission.

Site Development Plan Evaluation by Planning Commission

After the site development plan has been filed with the Commission, it shall be evaluated in accordance with
the standards sel forth in this Chapter and the requirements of the Overlay District. IF'the plan corresponds
to the requirements set forth in this Chapter and those of the Overlay District, the Commission shall
incorporate it as part of the zoning permit and endorse the permit for approval.

Ilan Changes Following Approval

Once approved, no changes are to be made to an approved plan without the plan approval being forfeited
unless the following procedure is followed:

The holder of any approved plan may request an amendment to Wi plans. and such request shall be
submitted to the Planning Commission. The Commission may approve minar departures to the plan througl
written notice to the applicant. 1Fthe Commission believes the amendment represents a departuore from the
intent of, or a major departure from the substance of the site development plan, then such amendment shal
be subject to the same conditions and procedures of approval as the original application. For the purpose:
of this Section, a "major departure from the substance of a site development plan” shall include. but not b
limited to, the addition of a use not included in the approved site development plan.

Doard of Zoning Appeals Review

IFthe site development plan is not appraved, the applicant shall have the right to appeal the decision Lo the
Board of Zoning Appeals in the same manner as rejection of any zoning permit application.

Following Final Approval

FFollowing the final approval of a site development plan, the Zoning Inspector shall be notified. and once al
fee payments are satisficd a permit or permits shall be issued based on the plan and amendments.

CHAPTER 1148

12



1148.01

1148.02

1148.03

1148.04

DESIGN REVIEW

PURPOSE

Due to the unique, natural, architectural, and historical characteristics exhibited within the City of Celina and the
desire to provide a sense of cohesiveness in cerlain areas, a Design Review District may be established to aid in this
pursuit, The Design Review District will permit the City to provide additional standards and regulations, through
review ofdevelopment and redevelopment projects within these districts, lo accomplish the aforementioned purposes.

ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AND DESIGN REVIEW COMMISSION

The establishment of district boundaries and (he Design Review Commission shall be as (ollows:

Al Council may establish districts as part of the official zoning map where design review is required as per
Chapter 1148. The procedurcs established under Chapter 1157 shall be followed for the establishment of
these districts.

B. A Design Review Conunission shall be established for each Design Review DistricL. [t shall consist of five
(5) members, all residents of the Municipality appointed by the Mayor and subject to approval of Cowneil.
The terms shall be for four (4) years with two of the initial members being appoinled to twa (2) year terms,
Members may be reappointed. One member shall be a property owner or resident of the design review arca.
All members shall have, to the highest extent possible, a recognized knowledge of, or known interest in.
historic preservation, architectural, or design disciplines. At least anc member shall have a professional
background in architectural, engineering, contracting, or other similar construction/design profession. The
Commission shall adopt its own rules of procedure consistent with this Ordinance.

€. The duties of the Design Review Commission are to:

1 Review and approve or deny all applications for Certificales of Design Approval. All applications
are to be acted upon by the Commission within the time period established in Scction 1148.04 of this
Chapter.

2 Work to increase the public awareness of the significance of the district.

3 Encourage property owners within the district to initiate changes which will enhance the signifieance
of the district.

4. Receive, send and account forany funds which it may legally receive [rom any source for the purposc
of carrying out the provisions of this Ordinance.

5, Contract, as needed and as allowed for by funding availability, technical experts to fullill the
provisions of this Ordinance,

6. Keep minutes and records of all meetings and proceedings, including records of voting, attendance
resolutions, findings, determinations, and decisions, with all pertinent material being amatter of public
record,

is Perform any other functions necessary to carry out the duties required by this Ordinance, or by furthe:

resolution of Council.

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGN REQUIRED

No new construction or exterior alteration shall be made to any property within the Design Review District until ¢
Certificate of Design Approval has been issued by the Design Review Board. No Zoning Certificate shall be issuec
Tor any site improvement, signs, construction, reconstruction, alteration or demolition of any structure now ol
hereafter in a Design Review District, unless a Certificate of Design Approval has been issued.

PROCEDURE FOR CERTIFICATE OF DESIGN APPROVAL
A, Theapplication for a Certificate of Design Approval shall be made onsuch forms as preseribed by (he Zoning

Inspector not less than elcven (11) days prior to the meeting of the Design Review Commission and shal

include the following data:

1. ‘Twao (2) complete sets of drawings and supplemental specifications, indicaling the building o
structure exactly as it is proposed to be buill. Additional sets may be requested. Such document:
shalil be accurately drawn to scale and dimensioned.

2 Asite plan, drawn Lo scale, showing the plot configuration and its perimeter dimensions. all structure:
on the site with locating dimensions, the location of all structures adjacent to the site within fifty (50
feet of the property line, and all vehicular drives, roads, related parking areas, main walks, walls
fences and major existing landscaping including trees of 6" caliper as mcasured 18" from top o
ground inareaalfected by construction. In addition, a vicinity map, anortharrow, the first [loor leve
and existing and finished grade elevations al each corner of new construction and at ench comer o
the site shall be indicaled.

23 Four elevation drawings including front, rear and two side clevations together with additional view
or cross seclions, if necessary, to indicate completely the exterior appearance of the structures. Al
elevations shall be drawn fo the same scale, which shall be not less than one-quarter inch per fooi
Each clevation shall show the accurate focation of windows, doors, shutters, chimneys, porches ani
other archilectural features, all materials and finishes, and an accurate finish grade linc.

4, Additional details to show unusual construction.

5. Material and color samples of all major finish materials, which shall be presented at the Desig
Review Commission’s meeting.

6. Drawings or photographs of existing structures that are to remain on the site where new siructure

are to be constructed. Where additions are (o be constructed to existing structures, elevatio
drawings or photographs showing the location of the addition shall be included.

13



[148.05

1148.06

1148.07

1148.08

3. ‘The Design Review Commission shall determine whether the proposed change will be appropriate to the
preservation of the environmental, architectural or historic character of the Design Review District pursuant
to the general and specific criteria. In determining the appropriateness of the change, the Design Review
Commission may conduct public hearings on the project or solicit input from City stall or consultants to the
Cily. The criteria contained in Section 1 148,05 and the Design Review District Guidebook shall be used by
the Design Review Commission to guide their decision.

8] ‘The City shall not issue a Zoning Certificate or Demolition permit until the Certificate of Desipn Appraval
has been approved by the Design Review Commission.
D, I'he Design Review Commission shall consider all applications thal have been properly submitted to it and

approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the application within forty-five (45) days of such item’s first
appearance on ils agenda unless a time extension is mutually agreed to by the applicant and the Design
Review Commission.

E. Approvals by the Design Review Commission shall be valid for one year from the date of final action. The
Zoning Cerlificate must be obtained and construction must begin prior to the expiration of one year from the
date of final action. Anapproval may be extended once for one year. Applications for extension must be
made in writing to the Design Review Commission prior {o the expiralion date of iitial approval.

I The Design Review Commission, may at its discretion, designate an authorized representative to approve or
disapprave applications for Certificates of Appropriateness for minor site improvements, construction,
reconstruction, exterior allerations, or demolition of structures.

GENERAL CRITERIA FOR EVALUATION OF APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATES OF DESIGN
APPROVAL

Indetermining whether the plan qualifics fora Certificate of Design Approval, the Design Review Commission shall
consider those factors listed below which are relevant to the work. Inapplying the factors listed below, the Design
Review Commission shall be guided by the Design Review District Guidelines, as adopted or amended by City
Council. The Design Review Commission shall issue a Certificate of Design Approval if the proposed plan is in
compliance with these Design Review District Guidelines. The plan shall be approved subject 1o conditions as
necessary to assure the work is in compliance with the Design Review District Guidelines.

A Consistency and compatibility with any plans for the Design Review Districtwhich have beenadopted by City
Couneil.

B. Compatibility with the building and structural patterns in the surrounding Design Review District.

e, The quality of design and site planning being promoted by the proposed improvements.

D. The avoidance of visual clutter created by unnecessarily large amounts and sizes of signage, and the
encouragement of signage that reflects the scale and materials of a development’s structure.

E: Any adverse effect on the access to the property by fire, police, or other public services; access to lightand

air from, and for, adjoining propertics; traffic conditions; or the development, usefulness, or vahe ol
neighboring land and buildings.

F. The climination or avoidance of blight.
DEMOLITION
A. In cases where an applicant applies for a Certificate of Design Approval to demolish a structure within the

Design Review District, the Design Review Commission shall grant the demolition and issue a Certificate o
Design Appraval to demeolish when at least one of the following conditions prevail:

I. The structure contains no features of architectural and historic significance which add to the characte
of the Design Review District.
2. There is no reasoriable economic use for the structure as it exists or as it might be restored, and tha
there is no feasible and prudent alternative to demolition.
3. Deterioration has progressed to the point where it is not economically feasible to restore the
structure.
B. 1T the Design Review Commission disapproves an application for Certificatc of Design Approval invalving

a demolition or removal of an historically and architecturally significant structure within the District, th
Design Review Commission shall have the power to impose a waiting period not to exceed six months
During such period, the appiicant shall make every reasonable effort 1o find a demolition alternative for tha
structure, During the wailing period the owner of such structure shall maintain and preserve the structur
to prevent further deterioration. [If the Design Review Commission and the applicant do not agree on s
means of preserving the structure within the specified waiting period, and if evidence is produce:
documenting the existence of at least one of the conditions set forth above in subsection (A ). the Certificat:
of Design Approval to demolish shall be issued as a matter of law upon expiration of the waiting period.

MAINTENANCE

Nathing in this Chapter shall be construed to prevent the ordinary maintenance or repair of any property within
Design Review District, provided such work involves no change in material, design, texture, color or exlerio
appearance; nor shall anything in this Chapter be construed ta prevent any repair of structural deficiency which i
required for the public safety because of an unsafe, insecure or dangercus condition.

APPEALS

Any applicant aggrieved by any decision of the Design Review Commission may appeal the decision to the Boar
of Zoning Appeals. Such appeal shall be taken in accordance with the procedures set forth in Chapter 1153, Th
Board of Zoning Appeals shall affirm the decision of the Design Review Commission unless it linels that the decisin

14



1150.01

1150.02

1150.03

1150.04

1150.05

1150.06

1150.07

1150.08

is contrary to law. In the event that the Board of Zoning Appeals docs not alfirm the decision of the Design Review
Commission, it may reverse, remand or modify such decision of the Design Review Commission and shall state the

reasons (herefore in the minutes ol its meeting and shall Torward a copy of such minuies to the Desipn Review
Commission.

CHAPTER 1150
NONCONFORMING USES

CONTINUATION OF EXISTING NONCONFORMING USES

Except as hereinafter specified, the lawful use of'a building or premises exisling al the time of the effective date of
this Ordinance which is 26-99-0 which would render the use nonconforming, may be continued although such use,
huilding, or structure does not conform with the pravisions of this Chapter for the district in which it is located. It
is not the intension herein to classify as nonconforming, a use or building allowed in a district as a conditional use
under the regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

ENLARGEMENT OR SUBSTITUTION OF NONCONFORMING USES

No existing building or premises devoted to a use not permitted by this Chapter in the district in which such building

or premises is located, except when required to do so by law or order, shall be enlarged, extended, reconstructed,

substituted, or structurally altered Lo increase its nonconformity unless the use thereof is changed to 2 use permitted
in the district in which such building or premises is located, and except as follows:

A. Enlargement or Substitution: When authotized by the Planning Commission, in accordance with Section
1150.02 thru 1150.05 , a nonconforming use, that has not been discontinued as specilicd in Section 1150.06,
may be enlarged and/or replaced by another nonconforming use.

B. Enlargement: When authorized by the Planning Commission, nonconforming buildings may be enlarged as
long as the building meets all minimal yard requirements in the district in which it is located.
Additionally, all such extensions shall not exceed 100% of the floor arca of the structure existing at the time
it became nonconforming. All such extensions on structures nonconforming because of use shall be made
within five (5) years of becoming nonconforming. Extensions may be made on a lot adjoining. provided that
such lot was under the same ownership as the lot in question on the date such building became
nonconforming.

REPLACING DAMAGED NONCONFORMING USES

A nonconforming use, which has becn damaged to the extent of sixty percent(60%) or more of the County Auditors
value as listed in the Mercer County Auditor’s recards at the time of damage, shall nat be restored except in
conformity with the regulations of the district in which it is located. When damaged less than sixty percent (60%)
of its County Auditors value, a nonconforming use may be repaired or reconstructed within the dimensions prior to
the damage, and used as before the time of damage. Such repairs or reconstruction arc lo be complete within one
year of the date of such damage.

NONCONFORMING TRAILERS AND MOBILE HOMES )
Mon-confarming trailers or mobile homes located on a fot in any district other than in an approved Mobile Home
Park in an "I-3" District, once remaved shall not be relocated on such lot.

REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS
Such repairs, alterations and maintenance work as required to keep said nonconforming use in sound condition may

be made to a nonconforming building or structure.

DISCONTINUANCE OF USE

No building, structure or premises where a nonconforming use has discontinued, for a period of 12 continuous
months or more, shall again be put to a nonconforming use. Discontinued shall mean that the structure has remained
vacant, unoccupied, unused or has ceased the daily activities or operations which had occurred.

ZONING CERTIFICATES FOR NONCONFORMING USES y
A Zoning Certificate shall he required for all lawful nonconforming uses of land and buildings created by adoption
of the Zoning Osdinance in accordance with the provisions of Section 1144.02 B.

APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT FOR ENLARGEMENT OR SUBSTITUTION OF A
NONCONFORMING USE

Anapplication shall be filed with the Zoning Inspector by at least one owner, owner's agent ar lessee ol properties
for which such cnlargement or substitution is proposed, The application shall be signed by the applicant. At a
minimum, the application shall contain the following information, provided however. that the Zoning Inspectorinay
waive certain submission requirements where it is determined that it is not applicable:

AL Name, address and telephone number of the owner of record and applicant.
B. A boundary survey of said property.
C. Deseription of existing usc.
D, Present zoning district,
E. Description of proposed enlargement or substitution.

15



1150.09

115010

1150.11

1150.12

L150.13

1150.14

1150.15

F150.16

I, A planof the site showing the location of all existing buildings, parking and louding arcas, trallic aceess and
traffic circulation, open spaces, landscaping. refuse and service areas, ulilities. signs, yards and any
enlargement thereof proposed.

G. A complete wrillen description of the new use in the case of a proposed substitution, and for an enlargement
the rensons for enlarging rather than relocation in an appropriate zone.

H. A stalement and supporting documentation describing how the applicant belicves the request conforms to
the standards listed in Section 1150. 09; and

L Any other such information as the Zoning Inspector may require.

¥ An application filing fee as established by Council.

GENERALSTANDARDS FOR ENLARGEMENT OR SUBSTITUTION OF A NONCONFORMING USF,

The Planning Commission shall review the particular facts and circumstances of each proposed usc or expansion in

terms of the following standards, and shall find adequate evidence showing that such use or cxpansion at the

proposed location:

A Is better suited for the site than would be a permitted or conditional use.

B. Shall not create a significant financial or structural hindrance to eventual conversion to a permitted or
conditional use.

1 Shall not be hazardous or disturbing to neighboring uses.

. Shall be served adequately by essential public facilitics and services.

E. Shall not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

F. Shall notinvolve uses, activities, processes, material, equipment and/or conditions ol opetation that will be

detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by reason of excessive production of traflic, noisc,
simoke, fumes, glare or odors.
The Planning Commission shall have the authority to place additional requirements and/or conditions.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS

In granting any enlargement or substitution of a nonconforming use, the Planning Commission shall preseribe
appropriate conditions and safeguards in conformity with this Ordinance. Violations ol such conditions and
safeguards when made a part of the terms under which the conditional use is granted shall be deemed a violation of
this Ordinance.

PUBLIC HEARING BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION
A public hearing on any enlargement or substitution of a nonconforming usc request shall be held by the Planning
Commission within forty-five (45) days of the acceptance of the application by the Zoning Inspector as complete.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING IN NEWSPAPER

Defore holding the public hearing required in Section 1150.11, notice of such hearing shall be given by publication
inanewspaper of general circulation in the City at least seven (7) days prior Lo the hearing. The notice shall set forth
the time and place of the public hearing and the nature of the proposed use.

NOTICE TO PARTIES OF INTEREST

Before holding the public hearing required in Section 1150.11, written notice of such hearing shall be mailed by the
Planning Commission by first class mail at least seven (7) days before the date of the hearing to the Planning
Commission, and all property owners within 150 feet in any direction of the property upen which an application for
an enlargement or substitution of a nonconforming use permit has been filed. The failure to mail or deliver
notification as provided in this paragraph shali not invalidate any action of the Planning Commission. The notice shall
contain the same information as required of notices published in newspapers a5 specified in Seetion 1150.12.

ACTION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION

Within thirty (30) days after the public hearing required in Section 1150.11, the Planning Commission shall either
approve, approve with supplementary conditions as specified in Section 1150.10, or disapprove the application as
presented. 1fthe application isapproved or approved with supplementary conditions, the Planning Commission shall
direct the Zoning Inspector o issue a permit listing the specific conditions specified by the Planning Commission for
approval.

APPEALS
Appeals of the decisions the Planning Commission shall be made to the Board of Zoning Appeals pursuant to Chapter
1153.

EXPIRATION OF A PERMIT FOR THE SUBSTITUTION OF A NONCONFORMING USE
A permit for the substitution of a nonconforming use shall be deemed to authorize anly one particular use, and such
permit shall automatically expire if, for any reason, the use has ceased by discontinuance or abandonment for a period

. of more than six (6) months,

CHAPTER 1153
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS



1153.01

1153.02

1153.03

ESTABLISHMENT AND PROCEDURE
The establishment and pracedures of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be as follows:

A

APPOINTMENT
A Board of Zoning Appeals is hereby established, which shall consist of five members. The live members shall
be appointed by the Mayor and approved by Council and shall serve for everlapping terms of four vears;
provided, however, that those first appointed shall serve for terms as lollows: one for one year, one for twa
years, one for three years, and two for four years. Subsequent appointments shall be for a full term of four
yeats. Vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term of the member affected. No one shall
be appointed lo the Board of Zoning Appeals who holds any eleetive or appointive oflice or position with
the City. All Board members shall be residents of the City of Celina.

PROCEEDINGS

1. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall adopt rules necessary to the conduct of its affairs and in keeping
with the provisions ol the Zoning Ordinance. Meetings shall be held at the call of the Chairnan and
atsuch other times as the Board may determine. Three members shall constitute a quotum; however,
al least three affirmative votes shall be required on any officinl action.

2. In any matter brought before the Board of Zoning Appeals that affects, directly or indirectly, the
personal affairs of a member of the Board, or any business or profession with which he may be
associnted, such member shall absent himself from the meeting as lang as such matter is before the
Board.

MINUTES AND RECORDS
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall keep minutes ofits proceedings, showing the vote of each member upon
each question, or il absent or failing to vote indicating such (act; and shall keep records ol its examinations,
and other official actions, all of which shall be a public record.
ATPEALS, HEARINGS
All meetings of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be open to the public. Appeals to the Board concerning
interpretation or administration of the Zoning Ordinance may be taken hy any person aggricved, or by any
officer or burcau of the governing body of the City affected by any decision of the Zoning Inspector. Such
appeals shall be taken within thirly days, by filing with the Board of Zoning Appeals a notice of appeal
specilying the grounds thercof. The Zoning Inspectar shall forthwith transmit to the Board all papers
consisting of the record upon which the action appealed from was taken. A fee as established by City Council
shall be paid to the Zoning Inspector at the time notice of appeal is filed.

NOTICE OF MEETING

The Board ol Zoning Appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of all appeals and give notice of such

hearing in a newspaper of general circulation at least seven days in advance. The same writlen notice shall

be sent to owners of property within 150 feet of all properties in question as shown on the County Auditor’s
tax list, and to the parties of interest. Al the hearing, any party may appear in persen or by agent or attorney.

DEPARTMENT ASSISTANCE

The Board of Zoning Appeals may call upon the various departments of the Cily for assistance in the

performance of its duties, and it shall be the duty of such departments to render such assistance to the Board

as may reasonably be required.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following powers and duties:

Al

B.

Hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error in any order, requirement. decision, interpretation
or determination made by the Zoning Inspector,

Authorize such variances from the terms of this Ordinance as will not be contrary to the public inferest.
where, owing to the special conditions, a literal cnforcement of this Ordinance will resull in unnecessary
hardship, and so that the spirit of this Ordinance shall be observed and substantial justice done. Procedures
for variances shall conform to Section 1153.04, Variances.

Permit the temporary use of a structure or premises in any district for a purpose or use (hat does not conlarm
to the regulations prescribed elsewhere in the Zoning Ordinance for the district in which it is located,
provided however that the use is of a temporary nature and does not involve the crection of a4 substantial
structure. A Zoning Certificate for such use shall be granted in the form of a temporary and revocable perinit,
but not for a period of more than twelve (12) months and subject to such conclitions as will safeguard the
public health, safety, convenience and general welfare.

Appeals taken on the basis of a decision rendered by the Planning Commission as specified in Section
1145.09, "Conditional Uses", and Section 1146.05, "Site Plan Review".

Appeals taken an the basis of a decision rendered by the City Council as specified in Section | 147.0511.
"Overlay Districts". -

Appeals taken on the basis ol a decision rendered by the Design Review Commission as specified in Section
1148.08,

DECISIONS OF TUHE BOARD

.

B.

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall decide all applications and appeals  within thirty days after the fina
hearing thereon,

A copy of the Board's decision, certified by the Chairman and Secretary, shall be transmitted fo all porties
ininterest. Such decision shall be binding upon the Zoning Inspector and observed by him; and he shall



1153.04

1153.05

1153.06

1153.07

1153.08

incorporate such terms and conditions in the permit to the applicant whenever a permit is authorized by the
Board.

44 The Board may reverse, afflirm or modify any order, requirement, decision or determination heard on appeal.
Every appeal granted or denied must be accompanied by a written (inding of Tact based on testimony and
evidenee and specifying the reason for such decision on the appeal,

D. There shall be no further appeals to a City body to the decisions of the Board of Zoning Appeals. Any party
adversely affected by a decision of the Board may appeal to the Court of Common Pleas of Mercer County
on the grounds that the decision was unreasonable or unlawful.

VARIANCES

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the power to hear and decide appeals and authorize such variances from
the provisions or requirements of the Zoning Ordinance as will not be contrary to the public interest. In authorizing
a variance, the Board may attach conditions and require such guarantee or bond as it may deem necessary to assure
campliance with the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance. Onappeal the Board may grant a vaviance in the application
of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance only if all of the lollowing lindings are made.

A, ‘That there are unique physical circumstances or conditions, including irregularity. narrowness. or shallowness
of lot size or shape, or exceptional topographical, or other physical conditions present on the subject
property:

B. ‘That because of such physical circumstances or conditions, the property cannot be reasonably he develaped

in strict conformity with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, and that the authorization of a variance is
therefore necessary to enable the reasonable usc of the property;

L That the circumstances and conditions have not been created by the appellant;

D. That the variance, if authorized, will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood or district in which
the property is located, nor substantially or permanently impair the appropriate use or development of
adjacent property, nor be detrimental to the public welfare;

E. That the variance, if authorized, will represent the minimum variance that will afford reliefand will represent
the Jeast modification possible of the regulation in issue, .

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE

A variance from the terms of this Ordinance shall not be granted by the Board of Zoning Appeals unless and until

a written application for a variance is submitted to the Zoning Inspectar. The application shall be signed by the

owner or applicant attesting to the truth and exactness ofall information supplicd on theapplication. Ataminimum,

the application shall contain the lollowing information:

Al Name. address and telephone number of applicant;

B A survey by a person licensed in the State of Ohio to perform land surveys (I deemed appropriafe, this
requirement may be waived by the Zoning Inspector);

C. Deseription of the nature of the variance requested;

3] A statement demonstrating that the requested variance conforms to the standards set forth in Section
1153.04(A-E); and

E. A fee as established by Council.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS AND SAFEGUARDS

In granting any appeal or variance the Board of Zoning Appeals may prescribe appropriale conditions and
safeguards in conformily with this Ordinance. Violation of such conditions and safeguards when made a part of
the terms under which the appeal or variance is granted shall be deemed a violation of this Ordinance and
punishable under Section 1199, Under no circumstances shall the Board of Zoning Appeals grant an appeal or
variance to allow a use not permissible under the terms of this Ordinance in the district invalved, or any use
prohibited by the terms of this Ordinance in such district.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the following responsibilities with Environmental Performance
Standards:

A. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have the power to authorize issuance of a Zoning Certificate for uses
that are subject to Environmental Performance Standards as set forth'in Section 1180.14.
B. The application for a Zoning Certificate for a use subject to Environmental Performance Standards shall

be nccompanied by a plan of the proposed construction or development; a description of the proposed
machinery, processes and products; and specifications for the mechanisms and techniques o be used in
meeling the Environmental Performance Standards.

€. The Board may refer the application to one or mare expert consullants qualified (o advise as (o whether a
proposed use will conform to the Environmental Performance Standards. The costs of such services shall
be borne by the applicant, and a copy of any reports shall be furnished the applicant.

D. The Board of Zoning Appeals shall hear complaints, not resoived by the Zoning Inspector, on ises or
facilitics that meet the requirements of Section 1180.14 of this Ordinance.

ANTERPRETATION OF DISTRICT MAP

On an appeal from the decision of the Zoning Inspector where the street or lot layout as constructed, or as recorded,
differs from the street and lot lines as shown on the Zoning Map, the Board of Zoning Appeals, after natice to the
owners of the property and after public hearing, shall interpret the Map in such a way as to carry oul the intent and
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance,

18



1157.01

1157.02

1157.03

1157.04

1157.05

1157.06

In the case of any appeal or questions as to the location of any boundary line between zoning districts regarding a

decision by the Zoning Inspector, a request for interpretation of the Zoning Map may be made to the Board, and a
determination shall be made by the Board.

CHAPTER 1157
DISTRICT CHANGES AND REGULATION AMENDMENTS

AMENDMENTS OR DISTRICT CHANGES
The Ordinance text or map may be amended by wtilizing the procedures specified in this Chapter.

CHANGES BY COUNCIL

Whenever the public necessity, or general welfare require, Council may, by Ordinance (anly upon receipt of a
recommendation from the Planning Cominission and subject to procedures provided below), amend. supplement,
change or repeal the regulations, restrictions and boundaries or ¢lassifications of property.

INITIATION OF ZONING AMENDMENTS
Amendments may be initiated in one of the following ways:

Al By adoption of a motion by the Planning Commission;
B. By adoption of a motion by Council for the Planning Commission to develop a recommendation;
G By application by a property owner of record to the Secretary of the Planning Commission.

CONTENTS OF APPLICATIONS FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS

The application shall be sipned by the applicant or the applicant's agent attesting to the truth and cxactness of ail
information supplied in the application, provided that an individual signing as the applicant’s agent shall furnish proof
of his authority to act for the applicant. Ata minimum the application shall contain the following inlormation:
A. Name, address and phone number of applicant;

B. A survey and legal description of the property proposed to be rezoned;
C. Present use;

D. Present zoning district;

E Proposed use including any plans that the applicant has developed;

(o Proposed zoning district;

G A vicinily map at a scale of not less than 1 " = 100" showing praperty lines, streets, existing and proposed
zoning, existing use of all buildings and the principal use of all propertics within 300 feet of such land and
such other items as the Zoning Inspector may require and;

H. A [ee as eslablished by Council.

TRANSMITTAL TO PLANNING COMMISSION
Following the request for consideration of a zoning ordinance text or map amendment by Council, or following the
{iling of 2 zoning map amendment application by at least onc owner of property, such motion or application shall be
transmitted to the Planning Commission for their recommendation.
STANDARDS FOR ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS
All recommendations by the Planning Commission for Zoning Map amendments shall be consistent with the City's
adopted plans, goals, policies and inlent of this Ordinance.
Prior to making a recommendation on a proposed rezuning, the Planning Commission shall make a flinding
to determine if the foliowing conditions exist. No rezoning of land shall be approved prior to specific
documentation finding at least one (1) of the following:

1. There has beena change indemand for land which alters the information upon which the Zoning Map
is based.
2 A study indicates that there has been an increase in the demand for land in the requested zoning

district, and as a result, the supply of land within said zoning district is inadequate to meet the
demands for such development.

3. Proposed uses cannot be accommodated by sites already zoned in the City due to lack of
transportation or utilities or other development constraints, or the market to be served by the
proposed use cannot be effectively served by the location of the existing zoning districl.

4, There is an error in the Zoning Map as enacted.

B. No residentially zoned land of less than five (5) acres in size shall be rezoned o a non-residential district
unless it is conliguous to land in the proposed zoning district classification.
i In addition to the findings required to be made by subsections (A) and (13), findings shall be made by the
Planning Commission on each of the following matters based cn the evidence presented.
L The extent to which the proposed amendment and proposed use are in compliance with and deviate
from adopted plans, goals and policies.
3 The suitability of the property in question for the uses permitted under the proposed zoning.
3, The ndequacy of public facilities such as transportation, utilitics, and other required public services
fo serve the praposed use.
The elfect of the proposed rezoning on surrounding uses,
The effect of the proposed rezoning on the economic viability of existing developed and vacant land
within the City.

ol



Ihe Planning Commission shall not recommend the adoption of a proposed amendment unless it inds (hat the
adoplion of such an amendment is in the public interest and not solely in the interest of the applicant.

1157.07 RECOMMENDATION BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION
The Planning Commission shall recommend to Council, within thirty-five (35) days of receipl of the complete
application, one of the following:
A. That the amendment be granted as requested;
B. That the amendment be granted with modification; or
ol That the amendment be denied.
If the Planning Comumission does not do one of the above within the allotted time period, then the amendment
proposal shall be considered denied. The Planning Commission shall transmit its recommendation to Council.

1157.08 PUBLIC NEARING BY COUNCIL
Upon receipt of the recommendation from the Planning Commission, Council shall schedule a public hearing. The
hearing shall occur within forty-five (45) days of the Council's receipt of the Planning Commission’s
recommendation.

1157.09 NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING IN NEWSPAPER
MNotice of the public hearing required in Section 1157.08 shall be given by publication of n notice in a newspaper of
general circulation in the City, Such notice shall be published at least thirty (30) days belore the date of the public
hearing. The published notice shall set forth the time and place of the public hearing and a summary of the proposed
amendment,

1157.10 NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNERS BY COUNCIL

Writlen notice of the hearing shall be mailed by the Clerk of Council by first class mail or hand delivery at least
twenly (20) days before the day of the hearing lo all owners of property within such area proposed to he rezoned
or redistricted and to the owners of property located contiguous to and dircctly across the street [rom the arca to
he rezoned. Such notice shall be sent to the addresses of such owners appearing on the County Auditer's current
tax list. The failure to mail or deliver the nolification as provided in this Ordinance shall not invalidate any such
amendment. The notice shall contain the same information as required of notices published in newspapers as
specified in Section 1157.09.

1157.11 PUBLIC EXAMINATION OF DOCUMENTS
Prior to the public hearing, all documents relating to the proposed amendment shall be on file, for public examination,
in the office of the Secretary of the Planning Commission.

1157.12 ACTION BY COUNCIL
Council may approve the recommendation of the Planning Commission by a simple majority. Council may
madify or disapprove the recommendation of the Planning Commission by a vote of not less than three-quarters
(%) majarity of the full membership of Council. Final action on the amendment must be laken within forty-five
(45) days of the close of Council's public hearing; failure to take action within such forty-five (45) day period
shall constitute disapproval of the amendment.

CHAPTER 1161
§-1 SPECIAL DISTRICT

1161.01 PURPOSE y , ; -
The purpose of the S-1, Special, District is to protect large public and semi-public land holdings for various municipal

uses.

1161.02 PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses arc as follows:
A, Agriculture
3. Public Recreation: Recreational facilitics developed, used, and/or maintained by public agencies for use by the

public.

1161.03 PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES . i
Any use or struclure customarily accessory to any S-1 District permitted use.

1161.04 CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitted uses are as follows:
A.  Airporls
B. Cemeteries
. Non-Commercial Recreation
1. Public Service Facilitics
E. Commercial Recreation
F.  Educational Institutions
G. Religious Places of Worship

116105  MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH

The minimum lot area and width for propertics in the -1 District shall not be less than 125,000 square fecland a widih
of nat less than 300 feet.

20



ToL06  MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
The minimum front yard setback for properties in the S-1 District shall be 60 feet.

116107 MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
The minimum side yard setback for properties in the S-1 District shall be 50 feet.

1161.68  MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK
‘e minimum rear yard setback for properties in the S-1 District shall be 60 feet.

H6LO%  MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION
The maximum height for structures in the 8-1 District shall be as follows:
A, Mo principal structure shall exceed 45 feet in height.
BB, No accessory structure shall exceed 15 feet in height.

16110 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
OfF-strect parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, O1f-Street Parking and Loading,

FI61.11  LAND USE INTENSITY
In the 8-1, Speeial, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 20%.

CHAPTER 1162
R-1 LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

1162.01 PURPOSE
‘The purpose of the R-1, Low Density Residential, District is to provide for relatively low density residential
development,

1162.02  PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
Single Family Dwellings

1162.03  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permilted aceessory uses are as follows:
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any R-1 District permilted use,

1162.04  CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitted uses are as follows:
A. Public Recrealion
. Public Service Facilities
C. Non-Commercial Recreation
2. Educational Institutions
E. Religious Places of Worship
F.  Bed and Breakfast Establishments
G, Day Care Facilities
H. Home Occupalions

1162.05 MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTTI
The minimum lot area and width for properties in the R-1 Dislrict is as follows:
4. Single family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 12,000 square feet and a width of not less
than 100 feet.
B.  Otheruses shall have a minimum lot arca of not less than 85,000 square feet and a width ofnot less than 200 fect.

1162.06  MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
“The minimum front yard setback for propertics in the R-1 District is as follows:
A, Single lamily dwellings shall have a minimum [ront yard setback of 30 feet.
B.  Other uses shall have a minimum front yard setback of 50 feet.
C. Mo accessory buildings shall be located in the [ront yard area.

1162.07  MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
‘The minimum side yard setback for properties in the R-1 District is as foliows:
A, Single family dwellings shall have a minimum side yard setback of 10 [eet.
8. Other uses shall have a minimum side yard setback of 25 feet.
€. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than five (5) feet to any side yard property line. They are also
restricted from platted easement areas.

1162.08  MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK
The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the R-1 District is as follows:
A, Single family dwellings shall have a minimum rear yard setback of 30 feet.
B.  Other uses shall have a minimum rear yard sethack of 50 feel,
(. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than five(5) feet to the rear property line, They are also restricted
for platied easement areas.

21



1162.09

1162.10

1162.11

1163.01

1163.02

1163.03

1163.04

1163.05

1163.06

1163.07

1163.08

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION

Phe maximum height for structures in the R-1 District is as follows:
A. No principal structure shall exceed 35 feet in height.

B. No accessory structure shall exceed 15 feet in height.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
Off-street parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Of-Strect Parking and Loading.

LAND USE INTENSITY
In the R-1, Low Density Residential, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 25%.

CHAPTER 1163
R-2 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

PURPOSE
The purpose of the R-2, Medium Density Residential, Districtis to provide for medium density residential developments.

PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses arc as [ollows:
A, Single Family Dwellings

B, Two Family Dwellings

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permilted accessory uses are as follows:
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any R-2 District permitted use.

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Caonditionally permitted uses are as follows:
Public Recreation

Public Service Facilities
Non-Commercial Recreation
Fducational Institutions

Religious Places of Worship

Bed and Breakfast Eslablishments
Three family Dwellings

Day Care Facilities

Group Homes

Nursing Homes

Retail Neighborhood Business
Assisted Living Facility T
M. Home Occupations

emmpn®

ol

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH

The minimum lot area und width for properties in the R-2 District s as follows:

A. Single family dwellings shall have n minimum lot area of not less than 8,000 square feetand a width of not less than
80 feet,

B. Two family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 5,000 square feet per unit and a width of not
less than 100 feet.

C. Three family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 4,000 square feef per unitand a width ol not
Iess than 100 feet,

D. Other uses shall have a minimum lot arca of not less than 45,000 square feet and a width of not less than 150 feet.

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK -
The minimum front yard setback for properties in the R-2 District is as follows:
A.  Residential uses shall have a minimum [ront yard setback of 25 feel,

B. Other uses shall have a minimum front yard setback ol 40 feet.

C. Mo accessory buildings shall be located in the front yard area.

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK

The minimum side yard setback for properties in the R-2 District is as follows:

A.  Residential uses shall have a minimum side yard setback of 8 feet.

BB.  Other uses shall have a minimum side yard sethack of 15 [eet,

C. Accessory buildings shall he located no closer than five (5) feet to any side yard property line. They are also
restricted from platied casement areas,

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the R-2 District is as follows:
A.  Residential uses shall have a minimum rear yard setback of 25 feet.

22



1163.09

116310

1163.11

1464.01

1164.02

1164.03

1164.04

1164.05

1164.06

1164,07

13 Other uses shall have a minimum reay yard setback of 40 fect.

€. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than five(5) feel to the rear property line. They are also restricied
Irom platted easement arcas.

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION

The maximum height for structures in the R-2 District is as follows:
A No principal structure shall excecd 35 feet in height,

1. No accessary structure shall exceed |5 feet in height.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
Of-street parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Off-Strect Parking and Loading.

LAND USE INTENSITY
In the R-2, Medium Density Residential, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 30%.

CHAPTER 1164
R-3 HIGE DENSITY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

PURPOSE
The purpose of the R-3, High Density Residential, District is to provide (or relatively high density residential
developments,

PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:

A, Single Family Dwellings

B. Two Family Dwellings

. Multi-Family Dwellings (Up to six units)
D. Efficiency Apartment Dwelling

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permitted accessory uscs are as follows:
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any R-3 District permitted use.

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitted uses are as follows:
A.  Public Recreation

B. Public Service Facilitics

C.  Non-Commercial Recreation

D. Educational Institutions

. Religious Places of Worship

F.  Bed and Breakfast Establishments

(. Day Care Facilities

I, Nursing Homes

I Mobile Home Parks

1. Retail Neighborhood Business

K. Group Homes

L. Assisted Living Facility

M. Multi-Family (7 units or larger)

N. Home Occupations

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTII

“The minimum |ot area and width for propertics in the R-3 District is as follows:

A.  Single family dwellings shall have a minimum lotarea of not less than 6,000 square feet and a width ofnot less than
60 feet, .

B.  Two family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 4,000 square feet per unit and a width of not
less than 80 feet.

€. Multi-family dwellings shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 2,500 square fect per unit and a widih of not
less than 100 feel,

1. Other uses shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 20,000 square feet and a width ol not less than 100 feet.

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK

‘I'he minimum front yard setback lor properties in the R-3 District is as follows:
A.  Residential uses shall have a minimum front yard setback of 25 feet,

B. Other uses shall have a minimum front yard setback of 30 fect.

C, Noaccessory buildings shall be located in the [ront yard area,

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
The minimum side yard sethack for properties in the R-3 District is as follows:

23



1164.08

1164.09

1164.10

1164.11

1165.01

1165.02

1165.03

1165.04

A, Single-family residential uses shall have aminimum side yard setback of 0 feetand Two-family residential uses shall
have a minimum side yard sethack of 8 feel.

3. Other uses shall have a minimum side yard setback of 10 feet.

. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than five (3) fect lo any side yard property line. They are also
restricted from platted casement areas.

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the R-3 District is as follows:

A.  Residential uses shall have a minimum rear yard selback of 25 feel.

B.  Other uses shall have a minimum rear yard sctback of 30 feet.

€. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than live(5) feet o the rear property line. They are also restricted
from platted easement arcas.

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION

‘The maximum height for structures in the R-3 District is as follows:
A. No principal structure shall exceed 45 feet in height.

B.  No accessory structure shall exceed 15 feet in height.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
Off-street parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Off-Street Parking and Loading,

LAND USE INTENSITY
In the R-3, High Density Residential, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 15%.

CHAPTER 1165
R-0 RESIDENCE OFFICE DISTRICT

PURPOSE
The purpose of the R-0, Residence Office, District is to accommodate low intensity office, residential and other similar
uses.

PRINCIFALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
A. Multi-Family Dwellings

B. Efficiency Apartment Dwellings

C. Personal Services

D. Offices

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permitted accessory uses are as follows;
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any R-O Distriel permitted use,

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitied uses are as follows:
Public Reereation
Public Service Facilities
Non-Commercial Recreation
Commercial Recreation
Educational [nstitwtions
Religious Places of Worship
Bed and Breakfast Establishments
Single Family Dwellings
Two Family Dwellings
Day Care Facilities
Nursing Homes
Retail Business
Commercial Schools
Financial Institutions
Restaurants 5
Clubs
Drive-in Commercial Uses
Animal Hospitals and Clinics
Clinics :
Scientific Research Facilitics
Laboratories
Group Homes
. Mixed Uses
Assisted Living Facilitios
Home QOccupations

“RECCHWAONOZZrRASTRANEENE R

24



1163.05

1165.06

1165.07

1165.08

1165.09

1165.10

1165.11

1166.01

1166.02

1166.03

1166.04

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH
The minimum lot arca and width for propetties in the R-O District is as follows:

A.  Residences shall have a minimum lot arca of not less than 12,000 square leet and a width ol not less than 100 feet.
B3, Other uses shall have a minimum lot area of not less than 16,000 square feet and a width of not less than 100 leel.

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
A, The minimum front yard sethack for propertics in the R-Q District shall be 40 feel.
B.  No accessory buildings shall be located in the [ront yard area.

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK

A, The minimum side yard setback for properties in the R-O District shall be 15 feet.

B. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to any side yard property line, They are alsa
restricted from platted easement areas.

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

A. The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the R-O District shall be 30 leet,

B.  Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10} fect to the rear property line. They arc also restricted
from platted easement arcas.

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION

The maximum height for structures in the R-O District is as follows:

A. No principal structure shall exceed 45 feet in height, except as noted in Section 1180.03.
€. No accessory structure shall exceed 15 feet in height, except as noled in Section 1180.03.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
Off-street parking and loading shall be as specilied in Chapter 1181, Off-Street Parking and Loading.

LAND USE INTENSITY
In the R-0, Residence Office, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 35%.

CHAPTER 1166
B-1 GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT

PURPOSE
The purpose of the B-1. General Business, District is to provide for convenience and other shopping, and personal and
professional services.

PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
A. Personal Services
B. Retail Business F
Offices
Financial Institutions
Restaurants
Fast Food Restaurants
Taverns
Hotels/Motels
Clubs
Automolive Services
Automotive Filling Stations
Drive-In Commercial Uses
. Funeral Homes

i
=0

rEETTonm

-
=3

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES g
Permitted accessory uses are as follows: _ .
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any B-| District permitted usc.

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitied uses are as follows:
A. Public Service Facilities

B. Non-Commercial Recreation

€. Commercial Recreation

D.  Educational Institutions

E. Religious Places of Worship

F. Bed and Breakfast Establishments

G. Single Family Dwellings

H. Two Family Dwellings

I Multi-Family Dwellings

1. Pubic Reereation

K. Nursing lHomes

25



1166.05

1166.06

1166.07

1166.08

1166.09

1166.10

1166.11

1167.01

1167.02

1167.03

1167.04

Commercial Schools

Automotive Sales

Commercial Fntertainment

Animal Hospitals and Clinics

Clinics

Day Care Facilities

Wholesale Business

Building and Related Trades

Lock and Store Warchousing

Farm and Heavy Equipment Sales and Service

<CHNRONOZE T

Hospitals
W. Mixed Uses
X. Assisted Living Facilities

Y. Home Occupations

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH
“The minimum lotarea and width for properties in the B-1 District shall not be less than 20,000 square feet and a width
of not less than 100 feet,

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
A. The minimum front yard setback for properties in the B-1 District shall be 40 feet.
B. No accessory buildings shall be located in the front yard area,

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK

A, The minimum side yard setback for properties in the B-1 District shall be 15 feet.

. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to the side yard property line, They are also
restricted from platted easement areas.

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

A. The minimum rear yard sctback for properties in the B-1 District shall be 20 feet.

B.  Accessary buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to the rear properiy line. They are also restricted
from platted easement areas.

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION
The maximum height for structures in the B-1 District is as follows:
Mo principal or accessory structure shall excced 45 feet in height.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
Off-street parking and Joading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Q[f-Street Parking and Loading.

LAND USE INTENSITY
11 the B-1, General Business, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 40%.

CHAPTER 1167
B-2 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT

PURPOSE .
The purpose of the B-2,Central Business, District is to encourage the functional grouping of those commercial,
residential and accessory establishments supporting the preservation of the historic character of this district.

PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
A. Personal Services

B. Retail Business

C. Commercial Schaols

1. Offices

E. Financial Institutions

F. Restaurants

G. Taverns

H. Hotels/Motels

1.  Clubs

J. Mixed Uses

PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permitted accessory uses are as follows:
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any B-2 District permitted use.

CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitied uses are as follows:
A.  Public Recreation

E. Public Service Facilities

26



1167.05

1167.06

1167.07

1167.08

1167.09

1167.10

1167.11

1168.01

1168.02

Non-Commercial Recreation
Commercial Recreation
Educational lustitutions
Religious Places of Worship
Bed and Breakfast Establishments
Single Family Dwellings
Two Family Dwellings
Multi-Family Dwellings
Efficiency Apartment Dwellings
Day Care Facililies

. Nursing Homes

Fast Food Restaurants
Automotive Services
Automolive Filling Stations
Automotive Sales

Drive-In Commercial Uses
Commercial Enfertainment
Funeral Homes

Animal Hospitals and Clinics
Clinies

. Group Homes

Hospitals

Assisted Living Facilities
Home Occupations

<3 3ol B Y- i e

NexgooH®» O]

MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH
There shall be no minimum lot area or widih for properties in the B-2 District.

MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
A. There shall be no minimum front yard setback for properties in the B-2 District.
B.  No accessory buildings shall be located in the [ront yard area.

MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
There shall be no minimum side yard setback for properties in the B-2 District. This includes accessory buildings.

MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK

A, Thereshall be no minimum rear yard sethack for preperties in the B-2 District unless abutting a residential district:
then the minimum rear yard setback shall be 20 feet.

B, Accessory buildings have a zero (0) foot minimum rear yard setback.

MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION

The maximum height for structures in the B-2 District is as follows:
A. No principal stiucture shall exceed 72 feet in height.

B.  No accessory structure shall exceed 25 feet in height,

OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
OIf-street parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Off-Street Parking, and Loading.

LAND USE INTENSITY ] e
In the B-2, Central Business, District the maximum lot coverage may be 100%. Exception, if site is adjacent to
residential district, see Section 1167.08

CHAPTER 1168
B-3 COMMUNITY SHOPPING DISTRICT

PURIOSE »
The purpose of the B-3, Community Shopping, District is to provide for shopping centers and related oullats of an
integrated design which provide for adequate parking and servicing areas.

PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
Personal Services

Retail Business

Offices

D.  Financial Institutions

Reslaurants

Taverns

Automotive Services

I, Automotive Filling Stations
Drive-In Commercial Uses
Commercinl Entertainment
Shopping Centers

S

o e g

27



1168.03  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Any use or structure customarily accessory to any B-3 Dislrict permitted use.

1168.04  CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permitted uses are as follows:
A. TPublic Recreation
B, Public Service Facilities
C. Non-Commercial Recreation
D. Commercial Recreation
E.  Educational Institutions
I Religious Places of Worship
G, Day Care TFacilities
H. Commercial Schools
I Fast Food Restaurants
1. Hotels / Motels
K. Clubs
L. Autometive Sales
M. Funeral Hontes
M. Animal Hospitals and Clinics
Q. Clinics
. Mixed Uses

1168.05  MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH
The minimum lot area and width for properties in the B-3 District is as follows:
A, The primary development shall have a minimum lot arca of not less than 200,000 square feet and a width of not
less than 400 feet,
8. Qutlots shall have minimum lot area of not less than 20,000 square feet and a width of not less than 150 feet.

1168.06 MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
A.  The minimum front yard setback for propertics in the B-3 District shall be 60 feet.
B. No accessory buildings shall be located in the [ront yard area.

1168.07 MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
A. The minimum side vard setback for properties in the B-3 District shall be 30 feet.
B. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer (han twenty (20) [cet to any side yard property line. They are alsa
restricted from platted casement areas.

1168.08  MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK
A, The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the B-3 District shall be 40 feel,
B.  Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than twenty (20) feet to the rear property line. They arc also
restricted from platted easement areas,

1168.09  MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION .
The maximum height for structures in the B-3 District is as follows:
No principal or accessory structure shall exceed 35 feet in height.

1168.10  OFF-STRELT PARKING AND LOADING ) )
Off-street parking and loading shall be as specified in Chapter 1181, Off-Street Parking and Loading.

1168.11  LAND USE INTENSITY
In the B-3, Community Shopping, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 30%.

CHAPTER 1169
M MANUFACTURING DISTRICT

1169.01  PURPOSE ) .
The purpose of the M, Manufacturing, District is to accommodate industrial, manufacturing. warehousing. office,
research and development, and related uses.

1169.02 PRINCIPALLY PERMITTED USES
Principally permitted uses are as follows:
A.  Scientific Research Facilities
Wholesale Businesses
Manufacturing,
Laboratories
Warehousing
Food Processing
. Mixed Uses

oEmEOR

1169.03  PERMITTED ACCESSORY USES
Permilted accessory uses are as follows: )
Any use or struclure customarily accessory to any M District permitted use.

28



1169.04  CONDITIONALLY PERMITTED USES
Conditionally permilted uses are as follows:
A. Public Recreation

Public Service Facilities

Grain Elevators and Feed Mills

D. Offices

Day Care Facilitics

Building and Related Trades

G.  Petroleum Refining and Storage

H. Qil and Gas Wells

Junk Storage and Sales

‘Iransport Trucking Terminals

Farm and Heavy Equipment Sales and Service

Stockyards

Mining

Home Occupations

o

@

ZErwer

[169.05  MINIMUM LOT AREA AND WIDTH
The minimum lot area and width for properties in the M District shall not be less than 45,000 square feet and a width
of tot less than 200 fect.

1169.06 MINIMUM FRONT YARD SETBACK
A, The minimum front yard setback for properties in the M District shall be 50 feet.
B. No accessory buildings shall be located in the front yard arca,

1169.07 MINIMUM SIDE YARD SETBACK
A.  The minimum side yard setback for properties in the M District shall be 30 feet.
B. Accessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10) feel to any side yard property line. They are also
restricted from platled easement arcas.

1169.08 MINIMUM REAR YARD SETBACK
A. The minimum rear yard setback for properties in the M District shall be 40 feet.
B. Aceessory buildings shall be located no closer than ten (10) feet to the rear property line. They are also restricted
from platted easement areas.

1169.09  MAXIMUM HEIGHT REGULATION
The maximum height [or structures in the M District is as follows:
Mo principal or accessory structure shall excecd 45 feet in height.

1169.10 OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING
OfT-street parking and loading shall be as specilied in Chapter 1181, Off-Street Parking and Loading.

1169.11  LAND USE INTENSITY
In the M, Manufacturing, District the maximum lot coverage shall be 50%.

CHAPTER 1180
SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS

1180.01  FLOOR AREA REQUIREMENTS FOR DWELLINGS
‘T'he lloar area per family in dwellings erected on any lot shall ot be less than that established by the following
table. In determining floor area, only area used for living quarters shall be counted. Common arcas such as
utility rooms, laundry areas, mechanical rooms, halls, and stairways are to be excluded. Also excluded are
garages, carports, porches, and basements.
L LA PER EACH FAMILY UNIT
(Expressed in square feet)
Apartment of Multiple Dwellings
District Single and Two Efficicncies 1 Bedroom Unit 2 or More

Family Dwellings Bedrooms
"R-1" 1100 N/A N/A N/A
“R-2" 900 NIA 575 820
"R-3° 750 285 575 750
"R-O" NIA 285 575 750

11 other districts where residences are allowed as conditional uses, R-3 standards apply.

1180.02 SIDE AND REAR YARD REQUIREMENTS FOR NONRESIDENTIAL USES ABUTTING "R"
DISTRICTS
A Minimum Yard Requirements. Nonresidential buildings or uses shall not be localed nor conducted
closer to any lot line of "R-1", "R-2" or "R-3" District than the distance specified in the following
schedule, except as provided in subscction (B) hereof.
Minimum Side or Rear Yard Modification

29



B.

Abutling any "R" District ((t.) Use

25 Olf-street parking and loading spaces and access drives for
nonresidential uses.

50 Churches, schools and public or semipublic buildings.

60 Recreation facilities, enterlainment facilitics, motels, trailers and
mobile home parks, all commercial uses and billboards.

100 Oulside sale or storage of building material or construction
cquipment, all industrial uscs, except those listed herein,

500 Auto and metal salvage operations; mineral extraction or
processing,

Landseaping or Screening Provisions. Fornonresidential uses abutting "R" Districts the minimum yards
may be reduced to fily percent (50%) of the requirements stated in subsection () hereol if landseaping
or screening, approved by the Zoning Inspector, is provided.

1180.03 HEIGHT REGULATIONS FOR INSTITUTIONAL, OFFICE, INDUSTRIAL AND APARTMENT
BUILDINGS AND STRUCTURES

A

C.

Institutional, industrial and apartment buildings with a height in excess of the maximum height specified
in the respeetive distriet for such buildings shall be permitted provided the required front, side and rear
yards are increased by ane [oot for each foot of additional building height above the maximum specilicd
in the respective districl.

The height regulations prescribed herein shall not apply to television and radio towers, church spires,
belfries, monuments, tanks, water and fire towers, stage towers or scenery lofls, cooling. lowers.
omamental towers and spires, chimneys, silos and similar structures, elevator bulkheads. smokestacks,
conveyars and flagpoles, except where the height of such structures will constitule a hazard to a sale
landing and take-off of aircraft at an established airport.

No building shall exceed a maximum height of 100 feet without prior approval of the Planning
Commission.

1180.04 EXISTING LOTS OF RECORD
The following applies to all {ots of record at the effective date of this Zoning Ordinance.

A.  Any existing lot of record forty feel or wider in districts allowing single family residences as
permilted uses may be used for the ercction of a single-family dwelling even though its area and
width are less than the minimum requirements set forth herein.

B.  On lots of record sctbacks for new, altered or expanded residences and their accessory struciures
shall be determined according to the following:

1. The minimum side yard setback shall be determined by the proportional reduction of the
requirements specified in the district up to a maximum of 50% of the minimum sethack
stated in the district.

2. The front and rear setbacks shall be established by the corresponding prevailing scibacks
for the front and rear yards on the same side of the block on which the structure is located
up to a maximum of 50% of the minimum sctback stated in the district.

B.  Onexisting single-family structures and their accessory structures, an existing wall may be extended
parallel to the side yard praperty line if the following conditions are met:

L. No buildings on the adjacent lot are within 10 feet of the wall extension.

2. Extension is no longer than 50% of the length of the wall at the time of the adoption of the
Ordinance.

3 Limited to a minimum setback of three (3) feet in all cases.

1180.05 ARCHITECTURAL PROJECTIONS
Certain architectural features may project into required minimum yard setbacks as follows:

A

Front, side and rear vards. The following architectural features may project into the minimum yard

setback of any front, rear or side yard adjoining a side street:

I. Cornices, canopies, eaves, or other architectural features may project a dislance not exceeding two
feet, six inches.

2. Fire escapes may project a distance not exceeding four feet, six inches.

3. Anuncovered stair, including landings, may project adistance not to exceed six (0) feet. Such stair
and landing shall nol extend above the entrance floor wilh the exception of handrailings.
Handrailings may extend an additional three (3) fcet above the floor level.

4. Bay windows, balconies, uncavered porches or decks, and chimneys may project a distance nol to
exceed three (3) feet. These features shall not occupy more than one-third (%) the width of the
building toward the yard in question.

Interior side yards. 'The structures or fealures as listed in {A) above, may project into an interior side yard

(those side yards not facing a side strect) a distance np to one-fifth (1/5) the required setback distance.

30



1180.00

1180.07

1180.08

1180.09

1180.10

1180.11

However, such projection shall not exceed three (3) feet. Structures or features which extend into more
than one minimum side yard selback are subject to all combined limitations.

SPECIAL YARD REQUIREMENTS

Al Lots having frontage on more than one street shall provide the required front yard on the principal street
and the minimum side yard required in that district, but not less than fifteen fect an the side street.

B. In (he case of lots having frontage on more than one street, accessory structures in that side yard shall
meet the prevailing front yard sethack on the streel on which it is located.

(44 Where a building lot is comprised ol more than one lot of record, building setbacks for all interior lot lines

shall be as for any property line. Hoswever, a building may overlap an interior lot linc.

TRAFFIC VISIBILITY ACROSS CORNER LOTS

In any distriet, except in the B-2 district, on any corner lot, no fence, structure or planting shall be erccted or
maintained withinatriangle 20 feet from the intersection of the right-of-way lines which may inter fere with trallic
visibility across the corner.

CONVERSION OF DWELLINGS
In “R-2" and "R-3" Districts, an cxisting residence may be converted 10 accommodate an increased number of
dwelling units provided:

A The yard dimensions meet the yard dimensions required by the zoning regulations for new structures in
that district.

B, “The lotarea per family is equal to the lot arca requirements for new multi-family structures in that district.

[ The number of square feet of living area per family unit is not less than that which is required for new

construction in that districl.

MOBILE HOME PARKS

All mobile home parks shall conform to and be pursuant to the conditional use provisions set forth in Chapter
1145, Furthermore, all sile, utility and construction plans are to be approved by the Ohio Depnitment of Health
and the Cily prior to the permitting of a mobile home park.

Maobile home parks shall be subject to the following conditions in addition to various district regulations;

A. Nomobile home shall be permitted to locate in the Municipality except in a mobile home park in the "R-3"
High Density Residence District.
B. The mobile home park shall conform to the following requirements:
ke It shall contain at least five acres.
% It shall provide a clearly defined minimum area of 3,000 square feet including a minimum width
of forty feet for each mobile home or trailer.
3. It shall have a minimum of 800 square feet of floor area per family in each mobile home.
4 It shall provide a minimum of twenty-foot clearance between individual mobile homes or trailers
and a thirty-foot setback from any property line bounding the mobile home park.
5. Allmabile home spaces shall abut upon a concrete orasphalt driveway of'not less than twenty feet
in width, which shall have unobstructed access to a private or public streel.
4. The developer shall provide a recreational area equal to a minimum of 10% of the gross land area

of the mobile home park development. In liew of providing this recreational area the developer can
pay a fee to the cily of comparable value for utilization at the nearest public recreational arca,
L It shall conform to all City, County and State Health Department requirements.

RESIDENTIAL PARKING RESTRICTIONS
The following restrictions shall apply to residential districts:

Al Parking mobile home units in any area outside of mobile home parks or sales arcas for more than furty-
eight (48) hours is prohibited.
B Parking of commereial vehicles, motar homes and all trailers, including utility, boat, recreational and

commercial, on residential streets or in the front yard of any residential fots for more than forly-cight (48)
hours is prohibited.

(o2 Unoccupied motor homes and eamping trailers, boats and noncommercial utility wrailers may be parked
in rear and side yards,

SWIMMING POOLS

Swimming pools shall be subject to the following conditions:

A, Privale Swimming Pool: No swimming pool, exclusive of porlable swimming pools with a diameter less
than twelve feet or with an area of less than 100 square feet, shall be allowed in any district, except as an
accessory use and unless it complics with the following conditions and requirements.

I The pool is intended and is lo be used solely for the enjoyment of the occupants of the principal
use of the property on which it is located.

2 11shall not be located, including any walks or paved areas or accessory structures adjacent thereto,
closer than ten fecl to any property line of the property on which il is located.

KR The swimming peol shall be walled or fenced to prevent uncontrolled access by children from the

street or [rom adjacent properties. The fence or wall shall be construeted not less than five feet
in height and maintained in good condition, with a gate and lack,

B, Community or Club Swimming Pools: Community and clubswimming pools are permitted inall districts,

but shall comply with the following conditions and requirements:
Ls The pool is intended solely for the enjoyment of the members and families and guests of members
of the association or club under whose ownership or jurisdiction the pool is operated.

3



1180.12

1180.13

1180.14

i The pool and accessory steuctures, including the arca used by bathers, shall not be closer than the
distances listed as the principal building setbacks for the zoning classi lication within which the pool
is located.

3. The swimming pool and all of the area used by the bathers shall be walled or lenced to prevent
uncontrolled access by children from the street or adjacent properties. The fence or wall shall not
be less than six leet in height and maintained in good condition,

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
Al An authorized agency of the Municipality. State or Federal government or the owners of any tract of land
inan "R" District comprising an area of not less than ten acres may submit to Council a plan for the use
and development of all of the tract of land for residential and associated non-residential purposes, The
development plan shall be referred to the Planning Commission for study and report and for public
hearings. Notice and publication of such public hearings shall conform to the procedures preseribed in
Chapter 1157 for hearings on changes and amendments. 1{'the Commissionapproves the plans. thesc shall
be submitied to Council for consideration and action. The approval and recommendations of the
Commission shall be accompanied by a report stating the reasons for approval of the application and
specific evidence showing that the proposed community development project meets with the following
conditions:
1. The property adjacent to the area included in the plan will not be adversely affected.
2. The plan is consistent with the intents and purpose of the Zoning Ordinance (o promole public
health, safety, morals and general welfare.
3 The use of the land shall be similar to the uses permitted in the district in which the plan is located.
4, That the average lot area per family contained in the site exclusive of the area occupied by streets,
will not be less than the lot arca per family required in the district in which the developmentis o
be located.

B. 1f the Planning Commission and Council approve the plans, a Zoning Certificate shall be issued, even
though the use of the land, the location and height of buildings to be erected in the area, and the yards and
open space contemplated by the plans do not conform in all respects to the district regulations of the
district in which the project is Jocated.

RESIDENTIAL ACCESSORY BUILDINGS AND FENCES
A, Accessory Buildings:

L. Single family residences are limited to one {1} accessory building except for properties with
delached garages, which may also have a small storage building not exceeding 150 square feet in
area. Properties with more than one dwelling unit may have one accessory building for each
dwelling unit,

% The ground floor atca of all accessory buildings shall not exceed the ground floor area of the
dwelling.

B. Fences and pianting screens shall be subject Lo the following regulations:

i Fences, plant material, and similar screening devices up to three (3) fect high are permitted in the
front yard areas. Fences up to six (6) feet in height are permitted in the remaining yard areas.

7 Injurious materials such as barbed wire, clectrically charged fences, or spike fences are not
permitted in any case. -

3. No lencing, or other similar structures, are permitied in easement areas.

4, No fence or planting screen shall violate the visibility requirements of Section |180.07.

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
Environmental performance standards are regulations which are intended to promote a peaceful and quict
environmenl. Restrictions or limits arc established on uses or facilities whose environmental factors may create
a nuisance or cause a noxious, objectionable or other undesirable effect on persons or properties outside of e
subject property. These restrictions apply to a uses” construction as well as its operation. Materials and/or
products of n use shall be maintained in a method so that the healtly, safety and wellare of persons occupying the
subject property or adjacent properties are nol jeopardized.
Applicability and Compliance
The Environmental Performance Standards are applieable to alt fand uses inall zoning districis in the City.
and both initial and continued compliance is required, Any condition or land use falling under the
jurisdiction of the standards of this code at the time of its adoption and ntot in conformance with these
standards shall be brought in full compliance immediately upon discontinuance of the existing use of land.
structure or building. Any change in the principal use of land, structure or building shall constitute a
discontinuance and be fully subject to these standards and provisions.
B. Noise
No activity on private property shall emit noise in excess of sound levels indicated in the table below.
Sound levels shall be determined by the use of a sound level meter designed to give measurements
designated as dBA or dB(A). Measurements may be taken, at the discretion of the Zoning Inspector, at
the property line or anywhere beyond the property linc of the source praperty. The maximum noise levels
will be established by the receiving property or zoning district regardless of the proximity of the source
properly to it. The source property need not be contiguous to the receiving property.

MAXIMUM PERMITTED SOUND LEVELS

SOURCE PROPERTY RECEIVING PROPERTY

NOISE SUUI{CIE] TIME RESIDENTIAL | COMMERCIAL | INDUSTRIAL

32



118601

Residential Daytime' §5dBA S5diA S5diA
Highttime! 50 50 50
Commercial Daytime" 53 o0 &0
Nighttime! 50 50 50
Inddusteial Daytime! 55 60 70
Mighttime? 50 50 G0
; Dayrinie shall be considered as the hours between 7:00 AM and 1H0:00 PM.
Nighttime shall be considered as the hours between [0:00 I'M and 7:00 AM.
C. Exemptions
The following noise levels shall be exempt from the noise provisions during the daytime only:
I Firearms on authorized ranges.
2 Legal blasting,
3 Temporary construction activily and equipment.
4. Installation of utilities.
5 L.awn mowers, chain saws and garden equipment.
The following noise sources shall be exempt from the noise provisions at all times:
1. Adreraft.
Z Railroads,
E N Emergency vehicles and equipment.
4. Warning devices operating continuously for not more than five (5) minules.
5 Bells, chimes or carillons operating continucusly for not more than five (5) minutes per hour,
6. The repair of essential utility services.
T Officially sanctioned parades or other events.
D. Vibrations
Every use shall be so operated that ground vibration inherently and recurrently pencrated is not
perceptible, without instruments, al any point outside the property line of the property on which (he use
is located.
E. Glare
Any process producing intense light or heat, which may cause physical harm, including high temperature
processes such as combustion or welding, shall not be visible beyond any lot line bounding, the property
wherein the use is conducted.
All exterior lighting on private property shall be positioned s to extend glare away from adjacent
properties or rights-of-way. Furthermore, no activily on private property shall generate light that creates
a nuisance to surrounding properties, as determined by the Zoning Inspector.
F. Air and Water Pollutants
‘The emission ofait and water pollutants shall not violate the standards and regulations of any local. state
or federal agency having jurisdiction in this matter. J
G, Hazardous Materials
The storage, utilization and manufacture of solid, liquid and gaseous chemicals and other materials shall
be permitted subject 1o the  standards and regulations of any local, state or federal agency having
Jjurisdiction in this matter.
. Electrical Disturbances
No activity will be permitted which emits electrical disturbances adverscly affecting the operation at any
point of any equipment other (han that of the creator of such disturbance and., shall comply with all
applicable FCC regulations and standards.
L Tire Hazards
Any activity involving the use or storage of flammable or explasive material shall be protected hy adequate
fire-fighting and fire suppression equipment and by safety devices. Such potentially hazardous aclivitics
shall be kept from adjacent activities at a distance determined by the Mational Fire I'rolection Code,
J. Erosion )

No erosion, by either wind or water or other liquid shall be permitted which will carry substances onto
neighboring properties or rights-of-way. Erosion control methods shall be implemented anall sites where
the existing ground surface is altered or disturbed. All such work shall comply with all Jacal, state and
federal erosion control regulations or standards.

CHAPTER 1181
OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING

OFF-STREET PARKING GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Any building, structure or use of land, when erected or enlarged, shall provide for ofT-sireet parking spaces for
* molor vehicles in accordance with the provisions of this Chapter. A parking plan shall be required for all uses

except single family detached dwellings and two family dwellings. The parking plan shall be submitted (o the City

as part of the application for the Zoning Certificate. The plan shall show the boundaries of the property, parking

33



1181.02

1181.03

spaces, access driveways, circulation palicrns, drainage and construction plans, boundary walls, fences and a
screening plan, as appropriate.

Whenever a building or use constructed or established afler the effective date of this Ordinance is changed or
enlarged in floor area, number of dwelling units, scating capacity, or otherwise, to create a need for an increase
of ten (10) percent or more in the number of existing parking spaces, such spaces shall be provided on the basis
of the enlargement or change. Whenever a building or use existing prior (o the effeetive date of this Ordinance
is enlarged to the extent of fifty (50) percent or more in floor aren or in the area used, such building or use shall
then comply with the parking requicements set forth herein.

OFF-STREET PARKING AND DESIGN STANDARDS

All off-street parking facilities including entrances, exits, circulation areas and parking spaccs shall be in

accordance with the following standards and specifications:

A.  Parking space dimensions. Each of(-street parking space shall be no less than nine {(9) feet in width and
shall have an area of not less than 180 square fect exclusive of access drives or aisles and shall be of
useable shape and condition,

B. Access. There shall be adequate provisions for ingress and egress (o all parking spaces. Where (he lot
or parking spaces do not provide directaccess to a public sireet or alley, an access drive shall be provided.
with a dedicated easement of access as follows:

1. Forsingle family detached dwellings or two family dwellings, the access drive shall be a minimum
of eight (8) feet in width.

2 FFor all other uses, the access drive shall be a minimum of sixteen (16) feet in width.

3 All parking spaces, except those required for single family detached dwellings and o and three

family dwellings, shall have access to a public street or alley in such a manner that any vehicle
leaving or entering the parking area from or into a public strect or alley shall be traveling in a
forward direction.

. Parking arcas shall be considered extensions of the principal use with which they are associaled.
Only parking associaled with uses permitted in the residential district are allowed in that residential
district. Inaddition, residential district property shall not be used as an access for a novresidential
parking use.

5 Where possible, shared drives shall be utilized by businesses (o access propertics and limit curb
cuts on thoroughfares,
C. Screening. In addition to the sethack requirements specified in this Chapter for off-strect parking, lor

more than five (5) vehicles, screening shall be provided on each side of the parking area that abuts any
residential district, R-O District, or S-1 District. Screening plans shall be approved by the Zoning
Inspector.

. Paving. Any off-street parking arca for more than five (5) vehicles, and its driveway, shall have a
durable, dustless surface.

E. Drainage. Any off-street parking area for more than five (5) vehicles shall be graded and drained so as
to dispose of surface water which might accumulate within or upon such area, and shall be designed to
prevent the drainage of surface water onto adjacent propertics, walkways or anlo public streets. A
drainage plan shall be submitted for approval by the City.

F, Barriers, Wherever a parking lot extends to a property line, fencing, wheelstops, curbs or other suitable
barriers shall be provided in order to prevent any part of a parked vehicle from extending beyond the
property line or from destroying the screening materials.

G. Visibility. Access ofdriveways for parking areas shall be located in such a way that any vehicle entering
or leaving such parking area shall be clearly visible by any pedestrian or motorist approaching the access
or driveway from a public street, private sireet or alley.

H. Marking. All parking arcas for more than five (5) vehicles shall be marked with paint lines, curb stones
or in same other manner approved by the City and shall be maintained in a clearly visible condition.

L Signage. Where necessary, due lo multiple curb cuts, the entrance, exits and the intended circulation
pattern shall be clearly marked in the parking area. Signage shall consist of pavement markings or
freestanding directional signs in accordance with Chapter 1185 of this Ordinance.

T Lighting. Any lights used toilluminate a parking area shall be soarranged as to direct the lightaway (rom
the adjacent propertics and street rights-of-way.

DETERMINATION OF REQUIRED SPACES

I computing the number of parking spaces required by this Ordinance, the following shall apply:

Al Where floor area is designated as the standard for determining parking space requirements, the Moor arca
shall be the sum of the gross leasable horizontal area of all floors of a non-residential building.

B. Where seating capacity is designated as the standard for determining parking space requitements, (he
capacity shall mean the number of scating units installed or, indicated for each twenty (20) lineal inches
of hencli type seating lacilities.

(45 Fractional numbers shall be increased to the next highest whole number.

b. Parking space requirements for a use not specitically mentioned in this Ordinance shall be determined by
using the most similar and restrictive parking space requirement as speci fied by the Planning Commission.

E. When the building foor arca is designated as the standard for determining parking space requirements and
thal number is less than the minimum standard, at least one parking space shall be provided on the
premises.

34



1181.04

.

PARKING SPACE REQUIREMENTS

ITtwo or mure uses oceur on one property. off-strect parking requirements for all uses shall be computed
and added together to oblain the total required spaces for the property.

With the exception of the B-2 District, the number of ol[-streel parking spaces to be provided shall not be less
than the following:

" A

B.
.

0.

Ww.

AAL
BB.
CccC.
DD,
EE.
FF.

GG
HEH.

IL

KK.

Airport

Aunimal Hospital and Clinic
Automotive Filling Stations

Aufomotive Services

Automolive Sales
Bed and Brealfast
Building and Related Trades

Cemetery

Clinics

Club

Commercial Entertainment

Day Care Facility
Edueational Institution

Farm and Heavy Equipment
Sales and Service

Financial Institution

Food Processing
Funeral Home
Grain Elevators and Feed Mills

Group Home
Hospitals
Hotel/Motels

Lacl and Store Warchousing

Manufacturing
Mixed Uses

Nursing Home
Office

Personal Services
Public Service Facility

Reercational, Non-Commercial
Recreationnl, Commercial

Religious Places of Worship
Residential, Mohile Home

Residential, Multi-Family
Residential, Single Family
Residential, Two Family
Scientific Research Facilities
and Laboratorics
Restaurants

One space per four aircrall lie downs plus one space per four
aircraft storage areas,

Four spaces for cach examination room.

One space per fuel pump, Plus two spaces for each service bay.
Plus one space for each 100 square fect of convenience type retail.
Two spaces for each service bay. Drive through automotive
services such as car washes and quick lubes shall provide sulficient
stacking spaces [or three vehicles per bay.

Three spaces minimum, or one space for each 5,000 square leet of
lot sales area, whichever is preater.

One space for each guest room plus two spaces for the permanent
residence,

One space per each 500 square feet of floor area, plus one space
for each 1,000 square feet of warchouse space.

One space per each employee.

One space for each 100 square feet of floor area.

One space for each 100 square fect of floor area.

One space per five seals or one space for each 100 square feel off
floor area.

One space for each three children per licensed design capacity.
‘Two spaces for cach classroom, plus one space for each four seats
in the places ol assembly. High schools, colleges, and vocational
schools shall alsa include one space for each five students at design
capacity.

One space for each service bay, plus
one space for each 4,000 square feet of lot area used for product
display.

One space for cach 200 square (ect of fioor atea, plus sufficient
stacking space to accommodate the number of automobiles equal
to five times the number of drive-up teller windows or drive-up
ATM machines.

One space for each 1,000 square feet of floor area .

Oue space for each 50 square feet of floor area,

One space for each 400 square feet of floor area plus a minimum
of 200 feet of stacking space for each loading and unloading bay.
One space for cach four beds.

One space for each bed.”

One space for each sleeping room, plus onc space for each 109
square feet of public meeting area and/or restaurant space.

One space for each 1,000 square fect of net
leasable floor arca.
One space for each 1,000 square feet of floor area.
Spaces shall be determined by the application of ali use
requirements.
One space for each three beds.
One space for each 150 square feet of floor area with a minimum
of four (4) spaces required.
One space for each 150 square feet of lloor area with a minimum
of four (4) spaces required.
One space for each 150 square feet of floor area with a minimum
of four {4) spaces required.
One space for each participant at maximum utilization,
One space for each three seats, one space for each 100 square feet
of floor area, or one per each participant at maximum utilization,
whichever is greater,
One space for each four seats in the place of assembly.
Twao spaces for each unit, plus one space for each five units {or
guest parking.
Two spaces for cach dwelling unit.
Two spaces for each dwelling unit.
‘Two spaces for each dwelling unit.

One space for each 200 square
feet of floor area.
One space for cach 100 square feet of floor area with aminimum
of six (6) spaces required.

35



1181.05

1181.06

1181.07

1181.08

1181.09

1181.10

1181.11

LL.  Restaurants, Fast Food One space for each 100 square feet of floor area, plus sulTicient
stacking space for five vehicles at each drive through window with
a minimum of four (4) spaces requircd.

MM, Retail Business One space for each 150 square feet of floor area with a minimum
of four (4) spaces required.

NN.  Shopping Center Five spaces for each 1,000 square feet of floor arca.

00. Stockyards One space for each 1,000 square feet of floor area,

PP, Taverns One space for each 100 square feet of floor area with a minimum

of six (6) spaces required,
QQ.  Transport Trucking Terminals  One space for each 1,000 square feet of floor area.

RR.  Warehousing One space for cach 2,000 square feet of floor area.
58.  Wholesale Business One space for each 250 square feet of (loor area.
JOINT USE

Two or more nonresidential uses may jointly provide and use parking spaces when their hours ol operation do
not normally overlap, provided that a written agreement, approved by the Law Director and aceepled by the
Planning Commission shall be filed with the application for a Zoning Cerlificate.

OTHER LOCATIONS

Parking spaces may be located on a lot other than that containing (he principal use wilh the approval of the
Planning Commission, provided a written agreement, approved by the Law Dircetor and accepted by the Planning
Commission. shall be filed with the application for a Zoning Cerlificate.

HANDICAPPED PARKING REQUIREMENTS
Parking spaces for the physically handicapped shall be as provided in and marked as per the Ohio Basic Building
Code,

OFF-STREET LOADING REQUIREMENTS

In any district, in connection with every building, or part thereof, hereafter erccted and having a gross floor area
of 10,000 square feet or more, which is lo be occupied by storage, warehouse, retail store, wholesale store, hotel.
hospital, funeral home, or other uses similarly requiring the receipt or distribution by vehicle of material or
merchandise, there shall be provided and maintained on the same lot with such building. at least onc off-strect
tonding space, plus one additional such loading space for each additional 10,000 square feet.

OFF-STREET LOADING DESIGN STANDARDS

All off-street loading spaces shall be in accordance with the following standards and specifications:

A. Dimensions - Each loading space shall have a minimum dimension not less than 12 feet in width. 28 fect
int length and a vertical clearance ol not less than 14 feet in height.

B. Sethacks - Notwithstanding other provisions of this regulation and other setback requirements, off=slreet
loading spaces may be located in the required rear or side yard of any B-1 or M District provided that not
maore than 80% of the required rear yard or side yard is occupied, and no part of any loading space shall
be permitted closer than 50 feet from any right-of-way or residential district unless wholly within a
completely enclosed building.

i Sereening - [n addition 1o the setback requirements specified above, sereening shall be provided on each
side of an off-street loading space that abuts any residential district, Screening plans shall be approved
by the Zoning Inspector.

D. Access - All required off-street loading spaces shall have access from a public street or alley in such a
manner that any vehicle leaving the premises shall be traveling in a forward direction.

E. Paving - Any required off-street loading spaces. together with its driveways, aisles and other circulation
areas, shall be surfaced with a pavement having an asphalt or concrete binder of sulficient strength lo
support vehicular loads imposed on it while providing a durable, dustless surface.

F. Drainage - All loading spaces, together with driveways, aisles and other circulation areas shall be graded
and drained so as 1o dispose of surface water which might accumulate within or upon such arca, and shall
be designed to prevent the excess drainage of surface water onle adjacent propertics, walkways or ante
public streets. A drainage plan shall be submitted for approval by the City,

G. Lighting - Any lights used to illuminale a loading arca shall be arranged 50 as (o refleet the light away
from any adjacent properties or rights-of-way.

SUBMISSION TO PLANNING COMMISSION

Detailed drawings as indicated in Chapter | 146, Site Plan Guideline Standards, indicating necessary parking and
ofl-street Joading facilities shall be submilted to the Planning Commission with the exception of single family
detached dwellings and duplexes, for approval prior to the granting of any certificate. Such drawing shall shaw
the number of spaces and locations, dimensions and descriptions of all features enumerated in this Section or as
required clsewhere in this Zoning Code. The Planning Commission may require, inaddition to those enumerated,
further steuetural or landscaping features such as bumper guards, curbs, walls, fences, shrubs, frees, ground cover

-or hedges 1o further the intent and purposes of this Zoning Code. The Planning Commission, in addition, may

recommend such changes in location, width and number of driveways as it shall determine are necessary to
eliminate any potential trafTic huzards.

MODIFICATIONS



The Planning Commission may authorize a modification, reduction, or waiver of the foregoing requirements if it
should find that the peculiar nature of the residential, business, trade, industrial, other use, exceptional situation
or condition would justily such action.

CHAPTER 1183

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS FOR INTEGRATED APARTMENT, OFFICE, RESEARCH AND INDUSTRIAL

1183.01

USES

INTEGRATED APARTMENT, OFFICE, AND INDUSTRIAL CENTERS

The development of groups of properties for apariment, office, research and industrial centers in "I-0" and “M”
Districts shall be subject to the following requirements:

A preliminary review process shall be followed to ensure compliance with location, size, and chameter aspecis
of the proposed development, and

A final development plan review process shall be followed to ensure compliance to design requirements ol the

development.

Al Preliminary Review

‘The owner of atract located in any "R-0" or "M" District, and containing not less than four acres,
shall submit to the Planning Commission for its review a preliminary plan showing the use and
develapment of such tract of land for an apartment, office, rescarch or industrial center.  The
proposed uses may be mixed, but shall be consistent with those allowed in the district within which
the tract of land is located, If the proposed uses are not consistent with those in the existing
zoning district, the owner can proceed with a concurrent request to change he zoning
clagsification to the appropriate classification.

Inaccepting such plans for review, the Planning Commission must be satisfied that the proponents
of the apartment, office, research or industrial center are capable to undertake and complete the
proposed development, both financially and operationally. Av ble timetable of development
must be committed to by the proponents of the center and approved by the Planning Commission.

n. Preliminary Plan Requirements

The Preliminary Plan shall show a development consisting of one or mote groups of establishiments
in buildings ofan integrated and harmonious design, logether with adequate and properly armnged
utilities, traffic and parking facilities and landscaping, which will complement the gencral character
of the adjoining development and surrounding arca.

The applicant shall submit a traffic circulation plan which should present

a the location of the proposed development in relation to the City Thoroughfare I'lan;

b. the anticipated levels of vehicular and pedestrian tralfic to be generated by the

development;

3 the arrangement of on-site traffic circulation and parking facilities and landscaping
elements;

d. any physical and/or other traffic improvements required, requested, or proposed o

alleviate anticipated congestion being created by the proposed development; and

e such other information as the Planning Commission shall require.

The applicant shall submit utility and drainage plans for the proposed development which shall

show the lollowing:

. ‘Ihe connection points to the City"s waler and wastewater ulilities;

b, The connection points and locations of the electric, telephone, gas, telecommunications, and
any other utility services;

c The size, depth and location of required water and wastewater utility facilities,

d.  Water detention plan and calculations based on two and ten year events, emergency slorm
water plan for hundred year events; and

e The location of storm sewer lines and related facilities.

Design Regulations

The following additional regulations shall apply to apariment, office, rescarch and industrial centers:

E

Yards., No building shall be less than thirty fect distant from any zoning district boundary.
Loading and storage shall be permanently screened from all adjoining properties located inan "R”
District by building walls, or a [ree standing wall, fence or hedge at least six fect in height. All
intervening spaces between the street pavement and the right-of-way line and intervening spaces
between buildings, drives, parking areas and improved areas shall be landscaped with trees and
plantings and properly maintained at all times.

Tract Coverage. Where parking spaces are provided within the main buildings of the development,
the ground area occupied by all buildings may be expanded by 10% beyond the stated maximum
lot caverages listed for the zoning district.

Access Drives, Access drives shall be located at a minimum interval of 300 fect.

Loading Space. There shall be provided one off-street loading or unloading space for each 20.000
square feet, or fruction thereof, of aggregate Moor space of all buildings in the center. At least
ane-third of the spaces required shall be sufficient in area and vertical clearance to accommodate
trucks of the tractor (railer type.

Signs. Signs forapartment, office, research orindustrial centers shall be limited to wall-type signs
on the principal building, except that a free standing identification and directional sign not larger
than 15 square feet in area may be erccted at entrances to the center. luminated signs shall not
have the light source visible from off-site.

' D, Submission and Approval of Final Development Plan

Upon approval of the preliminary plan by the Planning Commission, the following procedure shall be
followed 1o achieve final approval of an apartment, office, research or industrial center.

7



1184.01

1184.02

I e proponents shall prepare and submit a (inal devefopment plan which will comply with the
design requirements, and will incorporate all changes or modifications required by the Pluming
Cominission in the preliminary review stage.

2, IT the final development plan complies with the requirements set forth in this Chapter, and other
pertinent sections of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Commission shall submit the plan with
ils report and recommendations to City Council for its review. Council shall seta public liearing,
following the required 30 day public notification process, to review the plan. 1l a zoning
classification change is being sought concurrently, this public hearing could incorporate both
issues.

3. Following the public hearing, Council may modify the plan, provided such medification is
consistent with the intent and meaning of the Zoning Ordinance. Any planapproval, in situations
where a zoning classilication change is required, will not be effective until such zoning
classification change occurs.

4. After the final development plan is approved by Council, any minor changes in carrying out this
plan, such as adjustments to or rearrangements of buildings, parking arcas, drive entrances, heights
or yards, must be approved by the Planning Commission. These changes must conform (o the
standards established by the final development plan and the Zoning Ordinance. Any other changes
must follow the final development plan procedure and receive authorization by Council.

CHAPTER 1184
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR ADULT ENTERTAINMENT FACILITIES

DEFINITIONS

A Adult Entertainment Facility: A commercial enterfainment facility having a significant portion of its
function as adult entertainment which includes "Adult book/video store”, " Adult entertainment theater”,
or "Adult entertainment business",

B. Adult Bool/Video Store: A facility, in which at least ten (10%) percent of the publicly accessible store
area deals in books, magazines, or other periodical, or video materials that display and are dislingvizhed
or characterized by an emphasis on depiction of items listed under "Specified Sexual Activities” or
"Specified Anatomical Arcas". A facility meeting this definition shall meet the requirements of a
commercial entertainment facility.

C: Adult Entertainment Theater: A commercial entertainment facility which devotes al least 10% ol'its
presentation time to the display of material distinguished or characterized by all items listed in "Specilied
Sexual Activities" or "Specified Anatomical Areas."

n. Adult Entertainment Business: Any commercial entertainment facility involved in the sale or services
of products characterized by salacious conduct appealing to prurient interest for the observation or
participation in, by the patrons, the exposure or presentation ol specified anatomical areas or physical
contact of live males or lemales. These activities are characterized by, but not limited to, photography,
dancing, stripping, reading, massage, male or female impersonation, and similar functions which utilize
activities as slated in "Specified Sexual Activilies".

E. Specified Sexual Activities: Activities such as:

1. Human genilals in a state of sexual stimulation or arousal;
2 Acts, real or simulated, of human masturbation, sexual infercourse, sodomy, cunnilingus, or
fellatio; .
3 Fondling or other erotic touching of human genitals, pubic region, butlocks or female breasts.
F. Specified Anatomical areas: Areas of the human bady as follows:
1. [uman genitals, pubic region, buttocks, and the areola area of the female breasts which are less
than completely or opaquely covered;
2, Human male genitals in a discernible turgid state, even if completely or opaquely covered.
LOCATION STANDARDS

Adult commercial entertainment [acilities, as defined in Section 1184.01, are subject to the following standards

regulating their location,

Noadultentertainment facility shall be established within one thousand (1,0007) feetofany R-1, R-2, R-3,
and R-O district.

B. No adult entertainment facility shali be established within a radius of one thousand (1000') feet ol any
school, library, or teaching facility that is attended by persons under the age ofcighteen (18) years ol age.
Noadult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius ol one thousand ( 1000") feet ofany park
or recreational facility attended by persons under eighteen (18) years of age.

C. No adult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius of one thousand (1000} feet of any
pennanently established place of religious services.

. Noadult entertainment facility shall be established within aradius of one thousand (1600°) fect olany day
care center or type A or B family day care home as established by the Ohio Revised Code.

L. No adult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius of one (housand (1000') fect of any
other adull entertainment facility,
¥, No adult entertainment facility shall be established within a radius of one thousand (1000') feet ol any two
of the following:
l. Cabarets, clubs, or other establishments which feature adult type of entertainment.
2 Establishments for the sale of beer or intoxicating liquor for consumption on the premises.
3. Pool or billiard halis.
4. Pinball palaces or halls.
5. Dance halls or discotheques.

6. Massage parlors.

38



1184.03

1184.04

1185.01

1185.02

1. Videomeades, or establishments known by other descriptions, which provide video games and/or
olher games for entertainment altended or participated in by persons under ciphteen (18) years of
age.

MEASUREMENT STANDARDS
Distances shall be measured from the property lines of any lot or parcel of land on which an adult entertainment
facility is located and the location from which a distance of separation is specified in Section 1184.02,

ADVERTISEMENT DISPLAY STANDARDS

No advertisements, displays, or other promotional materials shall be shown or exhibited soas to be visible to the
public [rom pedestrian sidewalks or walkways, or from other public areas. semi-public areas, or quasi-public areas.
All building openings, entries, windows, etc. for adult use shall be lacated, covered, or serviced in such amanner
as to prevent i view into the interior from any sidewalk, or any street. For new construction, the building shall
be oriented so as to minimize any possibility of viewing the interior from any public, semi-public, orquasi-public
arcas,

No screens, speakers, or sound equipment shall be used for adult motion picture theater, or other adult
entertainment facility, that can be seen or discemed by the public from any public, semi-public, or quasi-public
arcas,

CHAPTER 1185
SIGNS

PURPOSE

itis the purpose of these sign regulations to promate the public health, safety, and general welfare by permitting
the use of signs as a means of communication in the City of Celina:

A, ‘To maintain and enhance the City's natural and manmade environment;

B. To implement community design standards to encourage an attractive and healthy cconomic environment:
C. To recluce possible safety hazards to vehicle and pedestrian trafTic through good signape:

0. To minimize the possible adverse effects of signs on nearby public and private property; and

E. To enable the fair and consistent enforcement of these sign regulations.

The purpose. as stated above, is based on the [ollowing findings or conditions concerning signs:

A. That excessive signs create dangerous traffic conditions, intrude on motorist and pedestrian enjoyment af

the natural and manmade beauty of the City, and as such are detrimental to the public health, safety, and
general welfare of the City; and

B. That business enterprises and other institutions located along public and private streets have a need to
identify themselves and their activitics to motorists and pedestrians by means of signs.

DEFINITIONS

The following terms are defined for use under this section.

A, Abandoned Sign: Any sign remaining in place which no longer advertises or idenlifies an ongoing or active
business, product, or service available; or a sign which is no longer maintained in n serviceable condition,
The serviceability of a sign ceases when deterioration becomes as visibly recognizable as the image of the
subject of the sign,

B, Address Marker: A numeric reference of a structure or site not included ns part ofa wall or monument
sign. ‘These are not normally considered a sign under this section.

& A-Frame Card Sign: A free standing sign usually hinged at the top, Such signs are considered portable
and temporary,

. Animated or Moving Sipn: Any sign, other than a time and temperature display, which uses motion,
lighting, or special materials to depict action or create a special effect or scene.

E. Awning, Canopy, or Marquee Sign: A non-cleetric sign that is printed on, painted on, altached to an
awning, canopy, or marquee and is only permitted on the vertical surface.

F. Banner, Flag, Pennant or Balloon: Any cloth, bunting, plastic, paper, or similar material, used for

advertising purposes attached to, pinned on, or from any structure, staff, pole, line, lraming. or vehicle,
including captive balloons and inflatable signs, but not including official Mags of local, state, national or
foreign governmental organizations.

G. Billboard or Off-Site Sign: A sign, including supporting structure, advertising an establishment.
merchandise, service, or entertainment, which is not sold, produced, manufactured, or furnished at the
property on which the sign is located. !

H. Building Face: The length of the single front building elevation in which the primary entrance to the
business is located. Where more than one business occupies a building, the lrontage for sign purposes for
each business is determined by mulliplying the building front elevation width by the percentage of total floor
space occupied by each business or ial business space.

I. Changeable Capy Sign: A sign designed to allow the changing of copy through manual, mechanical. or
electrical means. Time and temperature displays are not considered against (he allowable advertizing sign
footage as long as no business identification or advertising is presented as part of the display.

X Civic Event Sign: A temporary sign posted to advertise acivic event sponsored by o public ageney, school.
church, civie/fraternal organization, or similar non-profit organization.

K. Construction Sign: A temporary sign erected on the parcel on which construction is taking place. The
sign may list the project name, owners, developers, professional services and contractors invalved and any
ather major sponsors of the development.

L. Development or Subdivision Sign: A temporary sign pramoting a new development or subdivision which

has received City Planning Commission review. ) ' N
M. Dircetional Signs: Signs limited to dircetional messages, principally for pedestrian or \'chl(:_ll]nrlrﬂlhc.‘nl‘wh
as "one way", "entry” or "exit". These signs giving dircction are nol considered part ol the advertising

39



1185.03

sigmage and do not require permitting. additional advertizing display is posted an the directional signs (e
Zoning Inspector may consider them as part of the square footage restrictions.

N. Double-Faced Sign: A post, pedestal, or monument display where the sign's [aces are hack to back and
the sign copy is similar on both sides. The area of double-faced signs is considered based on dimensions of
one side,

0. Garage or Yard Sale Sign: A temporary sign advertizing the sale of personal items at a residential
property.

P Incidental Signs: Incidental signs are signs no larger than 3 square feet in size lhal display nolices required
by law, or show affiliations or services provided. ltems displayed may be credit cards aceepted. trade
alliliations, business hours, or other similar information necessary to identily limits of or qualifications of
service or product.

Q. Institutional Sign: A permanent sign identifying the premises ol a church, school, povernmental office,
or non-profit institutional facility.

R. Kiosk: A three dimensional structure designed and constructed with the explicit purpose of displaying
information and advertising. This structure must supply a public service and can only reccive a permit
following review and approval of the Planning Commission.

B Logo Sign: A sign consisting of a symbal or mark associated with a husiness, service or product entity.

T. Monument Sign: A sign displayed on a pedestal or base that has a footprint 50% or more than the signs
horizontal dimensions.

u. Nonconforming Sign: A legally established sign existing prior to the establishiment of this Ordinance which
fails to conform to the regulations of this Ordinance.

V. Political Sign: A temporary sign directly associated with a local, state, or national political election or
issue.

W.  Portable Sign: A sign designed and constructed to be easily set up and removed or relocaled.

X. Promotional Sign: A temparary commercial sign posted to promote the sale of new products, new
management, new hours, new service or to promote a special sale.

Y. Projecting Sign: Any sipn which is attached to the [ace of a building and projects more than cighteen (18)
inches from the face.

Z. Real Estate Sign: An on-site temporary sign pertaining to the sale, lease or rental of'a building or premises.
“I'hese signs include Open House signs which indicate when salespersons are available to represent the
property subject (o sale, lease or rent.

AA.  Roof Sign: A sign erected, constructed, or placed upon or over a roofl of a building, including a mansard
roof, and which is wholly or partly supported by the building.

BB.  Sign: Any display that shows any product, service, business, name, ar other enterprise in a promotional
manner. A sign may consist of wording, logos or images.

CC.  Sign Program: A coordinated program ol signs as allowed under the "Commercial Shopping Center” and
"Apartment, Office, Research, and Industrial Center” developments.

DD, Temporary Sign: Any sign that is approved to be displayed for a fimited time period as set forth in this
Ordinance ar by the Planning Commission.

EE.  ‘Wall Sign: A sign painled on, printed on, or atiached to a wall which has its face substantially
perpendicular ta the building lace.

FF.  Window Sign: Any sign that is applied, painted, or attached to a wall which is not a projecting sign.

ADMINISTRATION =

These sign regulations shall be administered as stated under the conditions as listed in Chapter 1143 of this

Ordinance.

A. Permit Required
No sign, unless exempted by this Chapter, shall be eonstructed, displayed. or altered without an approved
permit, The permits shall be issued by the Zening Inspector when the conditions of this Ordinance are met.
Each permil application shall be accompanied by the following:

L. A drawing showing the design proposed.

Tz Dimensioned site plan showing the sign location in relation to property lines, buildings. walks, and
drives.

3. Dimensioned clevation drawing showing the size, sign type, height, illumination methad. support or
mounting method, and construction materials.

A sign for which a permit has been issued shail not be modificd, relocated, altered or replaced unless a new

permit or an amended permit is issued by the Zoning Inspector.

B. Signs Requiring a Permit = : i
Any sign erected, painted, posted or placed inany district within the City shall require an npnr‘cwcdrp_crlml
from the Zoning Inspector in conformance with Scctions 1144.02-1 144.05, except those signs identilied as
exempt from such permit. Sign structure, size, height, setback, location and number shall be determined by
the requirements set forth in this Chapler.

Changes or relocation of nonconforming signs require permits and any alterations must also meet the
requirements set forth in this Chapter. Sce Section 1185.04 D. for nonconforming signs.

[ 45 Signs Not Requiring a Permit

The following signs are exeinpt and do not require a permit from the Zoning Inspectar. To maintain an
exempt status these signs must comply with restrictions as established in this Chapter.

L. Political signs, Real Estate signs, and Civie Event signs when conforming to the requirements
established under this Ordinance, ) )

% Temporary signs painted on the outside of the windews for display on holiday or Sp‘CCIéll oceasions,

3 Signs located inside a building or behind a window and not exceeding the prohibitions sel forth in
Section 1185.03 D.8., do not require a permit.

4, Memorial signs and plagues installed by recognized civic organizations.

e

Official and legal notices and signs issued by governmental agencics.

40



T,

0. Official tags of all governmental and civie/Iraternal organizations.

7. Construction signs when coisforming to the conditions set forth under Section | 185.04 I 2,

8. Incidental signs for businesses like automobile services, gasoline serviee stations, automobile dealers
with service repairs, motels and hotels provided that all of the following conditions exist: the signs
are attached to a structure or building; the signs number no more than four (4) per street rrnnt:fgc,
and no sign shall exceed an arca per face of three (3) square fcet. Copy applied to fuel pumps or
dispensers such as fuel identificalion, station logo, and other signs requuired by law are permitied and
not counted against the number allowed.

9. Directional signs provided that such signs are located on-site, have a maximum area which does not
exceed three (3) square feet per sign, have a maximum overall height of four (4) feet above prade.
and are mounted on a monument or pole. Such signs may be localed in a required setback provided
that a minimum distance ol five (5) feet from any property line is maintained.

10, Garage and yard sale signs provided they conform to the regulations set forth in this Ordinance.

Prohibited Signs

The fellowing signs are inconsistent with the sign standards established in this Chapter and are therefore

prohibited. Permits cannot be issued for;

1. Abandoned signs afler 90 days of meeting the abandoned sign definition. The property owner will
be responsible for removal.
B Animated, moving, flashing, blinking, reflecting, revolving or other similar signs, with the exception

of permanently mounted Changeable Copy Signs and time and temperature displays as allowed in

this Chaplter.

Portable or A-Frame signs. For exceptions see Section 1185.04 F.7.

Roof signs

Signs placed in, or overhanging, the public right-of-way. Signs with exception are: governmental

signs and informational signs authorized by the Planning Commission and in confonmance with state

or federal regulations. Such informational signs shall not exceed two and a hal['(2%4) square fect in

area and shall not be illuminated.

6. Signs designed or constructed to resemble or imitate highway or traffic control signs or signals.

7. Temparary signs, found not in conformance to the regulations set forth in this Ordinance, These
signs may be confiscated by the Zoning Inspector, arhis representatives, in addition to being subject
to the conditions of Chapter 1199.

8. Windows signs when they are located in a residentially zoned district are larger than the allowable
signage for that distriet or are. illuminated.

Measurement Siandards

The area of the sign isdetermined by thedimensions of the background structure, unifying background area.

or by the maximum dimensions of the display area if posted on a common hackground. The following

standards shatl be used to determine the area and height measurements for all signs crected or posted within

the City:

1. The area of a sign shall be computed by means of the smallest square, circle, rectangle, triangle, or
combination thereof that will encompass the exterior display limits of a sign, but not including the
supporting frame or bracing.

v

2 The area of a sign with more than one face shall be computed by adding together the area of all sign
faces visible from any one point,

3. In the case of irregularly shaped three dimensional signs, the area of the display surface shall be
measured on the plane of the largest vertical cross section.

4. The heightofasign shall be determined by measuring the vertical distance between the highest point

of the sign to the ground elevation at the hase of the sign. 1f mounding was used at the sign hase,
the ground elevation shall be determined as the average ground elevation of the developed site at
the sign base prior o mounding.

5. The setback of a sign shall be measured from the vertical projection of the property line or street
right-ol-way line to the closest part of the sign.
6. Lots in B or M zones having frontage on more than one strect shall have a maximum aliowable sign

arca cqual to twice that of its shortest frontage, not to exceed twice the maximum number of square
feel otherwise allowed in the zone. These lots shall alsa be permitied twice the number of signs
otherwise allowed in their zone; however, there shall be no increase in the number of {ree-standing
signs allowed.

Fees

A schedule of fees for permits shall be established and amended from time to time by City Council.

1185.04 GENERAL REGULATIONS

Al

Cross-corner Sight Restrictions:

No sign, or part of a sign structure wider than one (1) foot, shall be erected in the cross-carner fine ol sight

between the heights of three (3) feet and eight (8) feet, as measured from the center lines of the relevant

pavements, in the lollowing locations:

1, AL street intersections, within a triangle, two sides of which are measured from the point of
intersection of the street rights-of-way, a distance of 40' parallel to the through street and a distance
of 15 fect parallel to the stop street. At 4-way stops the distance shall be 40 feet paralle] to cach
sfreet. E

Z At drives - within a triangle, two sides of which are measured from the paint of interseclion of the
street right-of-way and the centerline of the drive, a distance of 50 feet parallel 1o the strect. and a
distance of 15 feel parallel to the centerline of the drive.

Distracting Signs:

41



I

}ilgns which have moving parts, eplaceabice letters, o changing illumination shaltconfonn w the conditions
listed within this Ordinance. See section 1 185.03 1D for teslrictions on signs which use animation, Mashing
lights. shapes reserved for traffic control, and motion,

Sign Ilumination:

All sipns and advertising structures, except as hereinalter modified, may be illuminated internally or by
rellected light; provided the source of light is not directly visible and is arranged to reflect away from the
adjoining premises; and provided that such illumination shall not lead to confusion, or ereate o hazard to
traffic, or conflict with traffic control signs or lights. An exception o the above is that signs il luminated with
neon lighting are also allowed even though the light source is visible. See Scction |1 185.05 for districls
where sign illumination is prohibited.

Non-conforming Signs:

All signs which are in exislence on the effective date of this Ordinance shall be considered nonconforming
uses and shall be subject to the following provisions:

o8 No nonconforming sign shall have any changes made in the words, symbois or message displayed
on the sign unless the sign is specifically designed for periodic change of message.
P No nonconforming sign shall be structuraily altered so as to change the shape, size, type or design

of the sign, nor shall any nonconforming sign be relocated until it meets the requitements of this
Chapter and receives a permit.
Development or Subdivision Entry Signs:
The conditions for the placement of permanent signs identifying a development or subdivision shall be set
by review by the City Planning Commission. ‘These conditionsare to be forwarded to the Zoning Inspector
by the Planning Commission for issuance of a permit.
Temporary Signs:
Temporary signs require a permit unless they are identified as not requiring a permit under Section | 185.03
C. All temporary signs, unless specifically identified under 1185.02, Definitions, shall be considered
temporacy commercial signs. The following regulations shall apply to temporary signs:

L Civic Event Sipns:
These signs shall be registered with the Zoning Inspector listing the organization responsible. a
contact person, dates of posting, sign size, and location of sign. All posting periods and placements
must receive approval of the Zoning Inspector.  Any signs nol receiving this approval shall he
considered in violation of this Ordinance.
& Construction Signs:
These signs shatl be shown as part of the development's site plan. The number of signs, their
location and sizes, shall be approved by the Zoning Inspector before installation., I conditions
warrant, the Zoning Inspector may allow placement of the construction sign off-site. The posting
ol the sign{s) shall be limited to the construction period which begins one week before the actual
work begins or with the ground breaking, which ever is first, to the conditional final acceptance by
the owner.
3 Development or Subdivision Signs:
I'he conditions for the placement of these signs at a development or subdivision shall be set by
review by the City Planning Commission. These conditions are to be forwarded to the Zoning
Inspector by the Planning Commission for issuance of a permit.
4. Real Estate Signs: E
Real estate signs are not allowed in public right-of-way arcas. They are allowed a maximum area
of 6 square feet in residential districts and 32 square feet in all other districts.  One sales sign is
allowed per property frontage. In addition, an open house sign is allowed for a week period prior
to the open house date. Sales signs shall be removed from a propeity within one weck ol closing.
* Garage and Yard Sale Signs:
These signs are to be posted only on private property. The signs shall notl exceed 6 square fect in
area. ‘They shall be posted only the day of the sales. Ne signs shall be posted on any public utility
or light pales.
6. Temporary Commercial Signs:
‘The Zoning Inspector, in accordance with the provisions herein, is authorized to issue permits for
the erection and maintenance of temporary commercial signs. Such permit shall be issued for a
period not to exceed fourteen (14) days, nar more frequently than once in each three month perind
for the same premises. Temporary commercial signs shall not be illuminated. No temporary signs
containing commercial messages shall be permitted in residential districts. No permit shall be issued
for aerial signs, or signs designed to be moved on trailer wheels, skids, or an other similar devices.
‘The area, height and number of temporary commercial signs shall be determined by the requirements
tablished in the regulations for each zoning district.
% In the B-2 district, if a property has a 12 feel or wider sidewalk, cach business may have one (1)
A-Frame sign, or similar type portable sign, provided all the following conditions are met:
a.  'The sign shall only be on display during business hours of the
business if advertises.
b.  The sign shall not exceed 30 inches in width and 48 inches in height.
& ‘The sign shall be placed an the sidewalk only with the approval of the
owner of the front property, and
d.  1ts nearest edge must be placed cither a maximum of one (1) (oot
from the right-of-way line or between one (1) and one and a half (1.5)
feet from the curb,
e.  Signsshould be of a design that resists being moved or blown over by
the wind. However, they shall not be attached to publicly owned sign




posts, hydrants, trees, ete, in the right-of-way.

1185.05 DISTRICT REGULATIONS

The following regulations shall apply to all signs, permitted and otherwise, according to ench Zoning District.
§-1, R-1, R-2, R-3 and R-O DISTRICTS:
1.

Al

B.

B-
1.

2.

1.

2.

G

Lots used for dwellings of 10 or fewer units and their accessory uses:
n The maximuin total sign area shall not exceed six (6) square feet.
b. The minimum sign setbacks shall be as follows:

0 feet from all street right-of-way lines,

10 feet from all side property lines, and

10 feet from all rear property lines.

& The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be four (4) feet.

d. The maximum number of signs allowed shall be two (2), only one of which may be a
[reestanding sign. ‘

[} Signs shall not be illuminated.

Lots having a primary use that is nonresidential and apartment complexes with more than 10 units:

a. The maximum total area of all permitted signs shall be cqual to ane (1') square fvot ol sign
area for each four (4) feet of lot width, not to exceed a maximum of 50 square feet.

b. The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as follows:

O feet from all street right-of-way lines,
25 feet from all side property lines, and
25 feet from all rear property lines.
'3 The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be eight (8) feet.
d. The maximum number of signs allowed, regardless of the number of tenants, shall be two
(2), only one of which may be a freestanding sign.
Signs identifying or marking subdivision developments shall be reviewed and approved by the
Planning Commission as part of the subdivision review process. The Planning Commission shall set
the number, size and location of these non-lemporary development or subdivision signs.

Lots used for dwellings of 10 or fewer unils and their accessory uscs:
a, The maximum total sign area shall be equal to 20 square feet.

b. The minimum sign setbacks shall be as follows:
0 feet from all street right-of-way lines,
10 feet from all side property lines, and
10 feet from all rear property lines.
c The maximum height of any [reestanding sign shall be 6 leet.
d. The maximum number of signs, which require a permit, shall be two (2), only enc of which
may be a freestanding sign.
Lots having a primary use that is nonresidential and apartment complexes with more than 10 units:
a. The maximum total acea of all permilted signs shall be equal to 4 square feet of sign area for
each one (1') foot of lot width, not to exceed a maximum of 200 square feel.
b. The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as follows:
0 feet from all street right-of-way lines,
10 feet from all side property lines, and
10 feet from all rear property lines.
e The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 25 feet,

d. The maximum number of signs, which require a permi, regardless
of the number of tenants, shall be four (4), with only one freestanding sign allowed per
abulling street.
RI
Lots used for dwellings of 10 or fewer units and their accessory uses:
a The maximum total sign area shall not exceed 20 square feet.

h. ‘The minimum sign setbacks shall be as follows:
0 feet from all street right-of-way lines,
10 feet from all side property lines, and
10 feet from all rear property lines, cxcept as provided in Section 1185.03 D. 5.
c. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be six (6) feet.
d. “The maximum number of signs, which require a permit, shall be twa (2), only one of
which may be a [reestanding sign.
Lots having a primary use that is nonresidential and apartment complexes with more than 10 units:
. The maximum total area of all permitted signs shall be equal to 4 square feel of sign area for
each one (1') foot of lot width, not to exceed a maximum ol 100 square feet.
b The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as fallows:
0 feet {rom all street right-of-way lines,
10 feet from all side property lines, and
10 fect from all rear property lines.
c The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 25 feel.

43



1199.01

1199.02

1199.03

. The maximum number of signs, which require a permit, regardiess of the number of lenants,
shall be four (4), with only one freestanding sign allowed per abulling street.

D. B-3 COMMUNITY SHOPPING DISTRICT

l. Integrated Commercial Centers
a. The maximum total area of all wall signs for any one business shall be equal to two (2)
square feel of sign area for each one (1) foot of building width, not to exceed a maximum
of 200 square feel,
b The total area of any freestanding sign shall be 200 square feel.
& The minimum freestanding sign setbacks shall be as follows:

0 fect from all street right-of-way lines,
50 feet from all side property lincs, and
50 feet from all rear property lines.

d. ‘The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 35 fect.
e The maximum number of wall signs for any one business shall be
two (2).
L The maximum number of freestanding signs shall not exceed the number ol abutting streets
2. Other lots in the B-3 district, including outlots of integrated commercial centers having their own
street frontage and separate ownership:
a. The maximum total area of all signs shall be equal to four (4) square feet of sign area for
each one (1') foot of lot width not to exceed a maximum of 200 square feet.
b. The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as follows:
0 feet from all street right-of~way lines,
10 feet from all side property lines, and
10 feet from ail rear property lines.
c. The maximum height of any frecstanding sign shall he 25 feel.
d. The maximum number of signs allowed, regardless of the number of tenants, “.h'xll be four

(4), with only one freestanding sign.

E. f\f MANUFACTURIN;E DISTRI Q_l

The maximum total arca of all signs shall be equal to two (2) square feet of sign area for each one
(1) foot of lot width, not to exceed a maximum of 200 square feet.

2 The minimum setbacks for all freestanding signs shall be as follows:
0 feet from all street right-of-way lines.
20 feet from all side property lines, and
20 feet from all rear property lines.

3. The maximum height of any freestanding sign shall be 15 feet.

4. The maximum number of signs , which require a permit, regardless of the number of tenants, shall
be four (4), with only one [reestanding sign allowed per abulling street.

CHAPTER 1199
VIOLATION, REMEDIES AND FEES:

VIOLATION

Whenever a violation of this Zoning Ordinance oceurs, or is alleged to have occurred, any person may file a
wrillen eomplaint to the Zoning Inspector. Such complaint shall state the cause or basis of the violation. The
Zoting Inspector shall record the complaint, promptly investigate it and take the necessary action to resolve the
complaint,

In addition, any person can pursue the other remedies by law to initiate appropriate action or proccedings to
prevent, restrain, correct or abate such violation,

NOTICE OF VIOLATION
The notice of any violation of the Zoning Ordinance shall be as follows:
A Whenever the Zoning Inspector determines that there is a violation of any provision of this Zoning
Ordinance, a notice of such violation shall be issued. Such notice shall:
1. Be in writing;
% Tdentify the violation;
3. Include a statement of the reason or reasons why il is being issued and refer to the section of this
Zoning Ordinance being violated; and
4. State the time by which the violation shall be correctecl.
B. Service of notice of the vialation shall be as follows:
I, By personal delivery to the person or persons responsible, or by leaving the notice at the usual
place of residence of (he owner with a person aged sixteen (16) years or older; or
2, By Certificd Mail, addressed to the property owner of record on the County Auditor’s recordls,
Service shall be deemed complete when the fact of the mailing is recorded.
3. By posling a capy of the notice form in a conspicuous place an the premises found in viokation.
REMEDIES

The following remedies shall apply to violations of the Zoning Ordinance:

44



A, Prohibitions

1. No person shall fail or refuse to comply with an order issued by the Zoning Inspeclor. A
separale olfense shall be deemed committed each day upon which a vidlation oc::uts or
continues,

Z No person shall construct, modify, alter, use or occupy any structure or property in violation ol

the Celina Zoning Ordinance. A separate olfense shall be deemed commiticd each day upon
which a violation occurs or continues.

B. Penalties
{i Whosoever violates this section is guilty of a minar misdemeanor for cach offense.
2. If, within one year of the datc of the offense, the offender has been convicted of or pleads guilty
to another violation of Section 1199.03(A) the offender is guilty of a misdemcanor of the third
degree.

{32 Civil Remedies For Violations
In case any building is located or is proposed to be located, erected, constructed, reconstructed,
enlarged, changed, maintained or used, or any land is used or is proposed to be used in violation of the
Zoning Ordinance or any amendment or supplement thereto, the Zoning Inspector, shall institute or any
adjacent or neighboring property osvner who would be specially damaged by such viofation, in addition
to other remedics provided by Inw, may instilute injunction, mandamus, abatement or any other
appropriate action, actions, proceeding or proceedings to prevent, enjoin, abate or remove such unlawful
location, erection, construclion, reconstruction, enlargement, change, maintenance or use.

1199.04 FEES
The fees for all applicant costs incurred in this Chapter shall be established by City Council. Furthermore, no
plan shall be accepted for filing and processing, as provided in this Chapter, unless and until a filing fee is paid to
the City.
The applicant shall be responsible for the expenses incurred by the City in reviewing the plan or any
modifications to the plan. Such expenses may include items such as the cosl of profussional services, including
expenses and legal fees in connection with reviewing the plan, prepared reports, the publication and mailing of
public notice in connection therewith, and any other reasonable expenses directly altributable thereon,

SECTION TWO

THAT, any city legislation such as, Ordinance 26-74-0, and all the amendments to it and its map, which are
inconsistent with this Ordinance be hereby repealed.

SECTION THREE

THAT, this ordinance shall become effective [rom and after the date of its approval and adoption, as provided
by law.

Passed this__o4-9 day of ﬂuam_,[- 1999, / )
7 Ay /(

Wil IIlam T. Sell, Council President

ATTEST:
Q&J« Gt f {“C"l
L
Cler of{.:;r{cﬂ APPROVED 73 ﬂrU@U%T 1999
&5
Craig OzKlopﬂelscly M;}g
Approved as to Forn:

i { {
Kevin M McKirnan
City Law Direclor

45





